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P R 0 C E E D I N G S 

2 CBAIRMAII BEARD: Read the notice. 

3 MR. ELIAS: Notice issued May 17th, 1991 by the 

4 Clerk advises that a public hearing will be held in 

s Docket No. 910578-EI, that is the petition of Florida 

6 Power Corporation for determination of need for DeBary-

7 Winter Springs 230 kV transmission line; said hearing 

s to begin at 9:30 a.m. on July 8th, 1991 in Room 106 of 

9 the Fletcher Building, lOl East Gaines Street, 

10 7allahaaaee, Florida. 

11 CBAIRMAll BEARD: Take appearances . 

12 MS. S7UART: Cheryl Stuart of the Law Firm 

13 Roppin9, Boyd, Green and Sams, P. 0. Box 6526, 

14 Tallahaaaee, Florida, 32314, on behalf of Petitioner, 

15 Florida Power Corporation. With me at the counsel 

16 table ia Pamela Smith of Florida Power Corporation, 

17 P. 0. Box 14042, St. Petersburg, Florida, 33733 . 

18 CRAIRMAR BEARD: Okay. 

19 MR. ELIAS: I'm Robert Elias, 101 East Gaines 

~ Street, Room 226, Tallahassee, Florida, appearing on 

21 behalf of the Commission staff. 

~ MR. SMITH: I'm David Smith of the Commission's 

23 Division of Appeals, appearing as counsel to the 

24 Commissioners . 

25 CHAIRMAN BEARD: Okay. Where ace we? Here, I 
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know. Are you ready to 90 forward? 

2 MS. STUART : We are ready . 

3 CHAIRMAN BEARD: Okay . 

4 MS. STUART : Florida Power calls Michael Foley . 

5 CBAIRMAH BEARD: Is your other witness here as 

6 well? 

7 

8 

MS. STUART : Yea, he ia . 

CBAIRMAM BEARD: Okay. Let's go ahead, if we can, 

9 and awear both at one time. 

10 (Thereupon, Florida Power Corporation Witnesses Foley 

11 and Odom were aworn simultaneously by chairman Beard . ) 

12 CBAIRMAa BEARD: Okay. 

13 MICHAEL B. FOLEY, JR. 

14 havin9 been produced and first duly sworn as a witness on 

15 behalf of Florida Power Corporation was examined and 

16 teatifiec:l u follow• : 

17 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

18 BY MS. SftART: 

19 Q Would you please state your name and business 

20 addreaa. 

21 A Michael B. Foley, Jr. My business address is 3201 

~ 34th Street South, St . Petersburg, Florida. 

23 Q And by whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

24 A I am employed by Florida Power Corporation as the 

25 director of ayatem planning. 
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0 Hr. Poley, have you prefiled direct testimony in 

2 this docket consisting of 11 pages? 

3 A Yes. 

4 0 And do you have any changes or corrections to that 

s testiiDOn:r? 

6 A llo, I do not . 

7 0 If I were to ask you the questions contained in 

8 that prefiled direct testimony today, would your answers be 

9 the sa.e? 

10 A Yea, they would. 

11 HS . STUAR~: Mr. Chairman, I would ask that Mr . 

12 Poley's prefiled direct telephone be inserted in to the 

13 record as though read. 

14 CHAIRMAN BEARD: It will be so inserted. 

15 BY HS . S'!'UART : 

16 0 Hr. Poley, was there attached to your testimony 

11 one exhibit identified in in the prehearing order as Exhibit 

18 llo. 1? 

rou also sponsoring two additional 

21 exhibits, a Su..arr Bullet Chart and a .. P of the service 

~ territory which bas been passed out here previously and 

23 identified in the prehearing order as Exhibits No. 6 for the 

24 bullet chart and llo. 7 for the map? 

25 A Yea. 

GOMIA AND ASSOCIATES 



7 

Q And do you have any changes or corrections to any 

2 of thoae exhibits? 

3 A Mo. 

4 Q And is the information contained on those exhibits 

5 true and correct to the best or your knowledge and belief? 

6 A Yea. 

7 MS. STUART: Mr. Chairman I would ask that those 

8 exhibit• be given the numbers identified in the 

9 prehearing order. 

10 CBAIRMAB BEARD: Okay. Let's, help me just a 

11 minute here. I had it and then I put it aside . 

12 I have -- in your prehearing statement I show JEOs 

13 1, 2, 3 and and 4 . And this is different, and I show 

14 an MBP-1. 

15 MS. STUART: MBF-1 in the prehearing order is a 

16 map with the dotted line on it, that is Exhibit 1. 

17 CBAIRMAR BEARD: All right. 

18 MS. STUART: And then I had handed out prior to 

19 the hearing Exhibit 6, which is the Summary Bullet 

20 Chart. 

21 CHAIRMAN BEARD: We'll identify that as Exhibit 6 . 

~ MS. STUART: Six. It's in the prehearing order. 

~ CHAIRMAN BEARD: Okay, and the other is seven? 

24 MS . STUART : Correct, the green map. 

25 CHAIRMAM BEARD: Okay. 
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1 ..._.!1m WU:.rDa n.LXC 8DY%C. O•¥IUXC. 

2 ........, ou.c-r -rDifX.:.I or 

3 IIJ'cwam. •· ror.n, JJt. 

4 C. BW'ALJP or rt.OaXDA i'CMD CORPOD!'IO. 

5 DOCK8!' .0. 110578-BI 

6 .nme lt, lttl 

7 

8 Xatrolgctioa aa4 Qua1ifiqatioaa 

Q. 

A. 

•1 .. ae state your aaae, buaiaeaa a44r••• aa4 

o:oupatioa. 

My naae is Michael B. Foley, Jr . My business 

address is 3201 34th St. South, st. Petersburg, 

Florida 33711. I am the Director of System 

Planning for Florida Power Corporation . 

9 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Q. Wbat are your 4utiea aa4 reapoaaibi1itiea ia that 

poaitioa? 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

My duties and responsibilities are to direct 

generation and transmission facility planning for 

Florida Power Corporation. 

•1 .. •• au.aari•e your educational baokqrouad. 

I have a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical 

Engineering degree from the University of South 

1 
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g. 

A. 

g. 

A. 

g. 

A. 

10 

Florida and a Master of Business Administration 

degree froa the Florida Institute of Technology . 

•l .. •e au==eri•e your profe••ioaal ezperienoe. 

I have over twenty-four years of experience in the 

utility industry, with twenty of those years at 

Florida Power Corporation. My professional 

experience includes approximately 14 years in 

power plant engineering, design, operations and 

aaintenance and 7 years in system planning, with 

of ay career in corporate staff 

are 70U a a.-bar of any profeeeioaal 

o~ani•ations? 

Yes, I aa a registered Professional Engineer in 

the State of Florida. 

save you previously testified before this 

co.aieeion? 

Yes. I have previously testified for Florida 

Power Corporation in both rate cases and 

generating performance incentive factor (GPIF) 

hearings. 

2 
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1 rurpoae of zeatiaou 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

g. 

A. 

g. 

A. 

What ia the purpoae of your teattaony? 

The purpose of •Y testi•ony is to explain why the 

co .. iaaion should determine that FPC has a need 

for the proposed DeBary-Winter Springs 230 kV 

trana•ission line (the "Project") as the first 

atep in licensing under the Transmission Line 

Siting Act ("TLSA"). In explaining the need for 

the Project, I will give an overview of FPC and 

will describe the reliability and strategic 

benefits that the Project will provide to FPC and 

ita cuato•ers. Mr. Odom will provide more details 

on the technical analysis of the Project and the 

potential alternatives that we examined and 

rejected. 

are you apoaaoriaq aay ezhibita •• part of your 

teatiaoay? 

Yes. A •ap showing the general location of the 

Project is attached to my testimony as Exhibit 

_/_ (MBF-1). 

3 
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1 Oyaryiwy of rrc aa4 Pro1tot 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Please provide a brief 4taoription of •rc. 

Florida Power Corporation (FPC) is Florida's 

second largest investor-owned electric utility. 

FPC provides electric service to more than 1.1 

aillion custoaers in 32 Florida counties. FPC's 

service territory extends along Florida's West 

Coast, from St . Petersburg in the south to the 

Florida-Georgia border in the north and the 

Appalachicola River in the west. 

Please Otaoribt the tran .. iasion line for which 

rrc is sttkinq a 4eteraination of need in this 

docket. 

The DeBary-Winter Springs 230 kV transmission line 

will be approximately 18 to 22 miles in length. 

It will begin at FPC's DeBary Generating Plant 

near DeBary, in Volusia county, and will end at 

FPC's existing Winter Springs Substation in Winter 

Springs, in Seminole County. Engineering for the 

line is expected to begin in October, 1992 to 

support a December, 1995 in-service date. 

Exhibit ~ (MBF-1) shows the generalized 

location of the Project. The final length and 

4 
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g. 

A. 

13 

routing of the line will depend on the result of 

further proceedings under the TLSA. 

Why it PPC atkinq the co .. ittion to approve the 

Deed tor the Project? 

FPC identified the Project as the best alternative 

to aeet the twin needs of maintaining transmission 

reliability in the Greater Orlando Area and 

supporting future combustion turbine siting at the 

DeBary generating site in Volusia County. To meet 

thete needs in a tiaely fashion, the licensing 

activity for the Project must begin now. 

14 aeli&bility AA4 ltrategic Benetita ot Project 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

g. 

A. 

Plea•• 4eacribe the reliability need for the 

Project. 

The Project is needed by December, 1995 to enable 

FPC to continue to meet its reliability criteria 

for service to the Greater Orlando Area . The 

Project also provides a number of other 

reliability benefits. Specifically, the needs the 

Project satisfies and the benefits it provides are 

as follows: 

1. The Project is needed by 1995 to maintain 

single contingency reliability in the event 

5 
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14 

of tbe oata9e of tbe Sanford-North Longwood 

230 kV line. In ita at.pleat teraa, aingle 

contingency reliability means that PPC'• 

tranaaission system must be able to operate 

without overloads in the event that any 

single transmission line is out of service. 

If thia planning criteria is violated, then a 

single transmission line outage could result 

in loss of customer load. 

2. By 1997, the Project is needed to maintain 

single contingency reliability in the event 

of the outage of the North Longwood-Winter 

Springs 230 kV line. 

3. The Project reduces the severe overloading 

which would occur in the event of an outage 

of the double circuit segment of the Sanford­

North Longwood and Sanford-Altamonte 230 kV 

lines . 

4. The Project improves the power transfer 

capability into the Greater Orlando A.rea. 

5. The Project provides an additional 230 kV 

source to the Winter Springs Substation that 

will support future extension of the 

transmission system in the eastern portion of 

FPC'• service territory. 

6 
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24 

25 

g. 

A. 

15 

Mr. Odom will provide more detail about these 

reliability needs and benefits, and about the 

alternatives that FPC studied before concluding 

that the Project is the best solution for meeting 

these needs. 

•leaae 4eaoribe the atrateqio need for the 

~ojeot. 

FPC needs to maintain the ability to add 

generating capacity to its system on short notice 

to respond to a number of planning contingencies. 

A atudy of FPC's combustion turbine siting (CT) 

options led to the decision to construct 

additional CTs at the DeBary Generating site in 

1992 and at the Intercession City Generating site 

in 1993. Once the 1992 CTs are added at DeBary, 

the transmission system at that site will be fully 

utilized. This means that the addition of any 

further CT capacity at DeBary without additional 

tranamission would cause FPC to violate its 

transmission reliability criteria. The DeBary 

aite is a back-up site to Intercession City for 

the 1993 CTs, and is a leading candidate to serve 

as a location for future CTs. Because the 

licenaing and construction lead time for 

7 
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10 
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13 

14 
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16 

17 
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19 

20 
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22 

23 

24 

g. 

A. 

16 

transaission lines subject to the TLSA is longer 

than the licensing and construction lead time for 

CTs, it is prudent to add transmission that will 

overcoae the DeBary site's transmission 

limitations. The Project will address this need 

by reliably supporting up to 450 MW of additional 

CTs at the DeBary site beyond those planned for 

1992. 

Mr. Odoa will explain in more detail the Project's 

t.pact on overcoaing this transmission limitation. 

I will address the strategic benefits of being 

able to use the DeBary site for additional CT 

capacity on short notice. 

Why is baviaq the ability to a44 CT capacity at 

the DeBary site on short notice taportaat to PPC? 

The ability to add CT capacity at the DeBary site 

on short notice is important to FPC because it 

allows FPC to add new capacity in response to 

circumstances that may change unexpectedly. While 

aost capacity additions are planned well in 

advance of construction, it is prudent for FPC to 

have a useable power plant site, such as DeBary, 

8 
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16 

17 
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24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

17 

that is acceptable for presently unplanned CT 

additions. 

What oontin9enoiea ai9ht require the addition of 

auoh ~ capacity? 

There are several contingencies that could require 

the addition of such CT capacity. A few examples 

are: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Contracted QF capacity may fail to come on 

line as expected. In order to maintain 

system reliability, the addition of CT 

capacity may be the only available option. 

FPC's load growth may be higher than 

anticipated, resulting in the need for 

additional capacity. 

It aay not be possible to construct CT 

capacity at Intercession City in December, 

1993, due to unforeseen problems in obtaining 

permits at that site. In that event, a back­

up site would be required. 

The 500 kV tie line from Florida to the 

Southern system may be delayed from its 

planned in-service date. If this occurred, 

FPC might have to add CTs to maintain system 

reliability. 

9 
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17 
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24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Will the wrojeot ba•• aay t.paot oa Peaiasular 

Wlorida's ability to t.port power froa the 

aouthera &yat .. or other aeighboriag utilities 

outside the state? 

18 

No, this Project will have no impact on Peninsular 

Florida's ability to import power from Southern 

Coapany or other utilities outside Florida. It 

will, however, improve the power transfer 

capability into the Greater Orlando Area by 

providing a third transmission path from 

generation in the northern part of the area to 

load in the south. 

Pl .. •• su.aarise your testiaoay. 

The DeBary-Winter Springs transmission line is 

needed by December, 1995 to maintain the ability 

of FPC's 230 kV transmission system to reliably 

withstand single contingency transmission outages. 

The Project also avoids another single contingency 

violation that would otherwise occur by December, 

1997. In addition, the line enhances transmission 

reliability by minimizing the effect of outag~s of 

double-circuit transmission lines in the Greater 

Orlando area; improves the power transfer 

capability into that load center; supports the 

10 
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25 

g . 

A. 

19 

future qrowth and extension of the transmission 

qrid; and overcomes the transmission limitations 

at the DeBary site by supportinq the installation 

of 450 MW of additional CT capacity at that site. 

The Project is the best alternative available to 

FPC to meet the needs of FPC's customers for 

transaission system reliability and inteqrity in 

the Greater Orlando Area, and to assure the 

availability of abundant, low-cost electri cal 

enerqy to customers in our Eastern and Mid-Florida 

Divisions. We respectfully urqe the commission to 

make an affirmative determination of need for the 

proposed line as the first step in the licensing 

process under the TLSA. 

Doe• that conclude your te•tiaony? 

Yes. 

11 
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BY MS . S'l'UART : 

2 Q Mr. Foley, would you would you please summarize 

3 your testimony for us? 

4 A The purpose of my testimony --

5 CHAIRMAN BEARD: Let me stop right here. There is 

6 at least two of us that don't have a copy of the 

7 prehearing order. How about you all? I've got the 

8 prehearing statement I was working from that had four 

9 exhibits -- five exhibits. 

10 MS. STUART : Sure. 

11 (Document distributed to the Commission) 

12 CBAIRMAR BEARD: Row, we are cooking. And we have 

13 identified Exhibits 1, 6 and 7. 

14 MS. STUART: Yes, sir. 

15 CHAIRMAN BEARD: Okay. Row I'm on your sheet of 

16 music. 

17 MS. STUART: Thank you. 

18 BY MS. STUART: 

19 Q Mr. Foley, would you please summarize your 

20 testimony for us . 

21 A The purpose of my telephone is to give an overview 

~ of the proposed project, and to explain the reasons we are 

23 seeking approval for the DeBary to Winter Springs 230 kV 

24 line. 

25 If I could, Commissioners, I would like to use the 
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hand-held mdke and go up to the exhibits. 

2 Exhibit 7 is the map that you see here , which is 

3 the general area affected by the proposed transmission line. 

4 it depicts the general service territory of Florida Power 

5 Corporation in the Greater Orlando Area in the light shades 

6 of green. The Orlando Utility Commission service territory 

1 is shown as ;ray on this ezhibit . The white areas 

8 surrounding it are other utilities . Primarily on the east 

9 ia the Florida Power and Light Corporation service 

10 territory, Orlando Utilities to the south, and Sumter 

11 Electric Cooper ative is to the west . 

12 The line we are proposing to build connects the 

13 DeBary Power Plant substation, which is located in Volusia 

14 County to the Winter Springs substation , existing substation 

15 in Semdnole County , approximately 20 miles long. The line 

16 serves a dual purpose need. The first is to support the 

17 transmission reliability in the area . It also serves 

18 another need of providing power plant citing flexibility by 

19 being able to add more capacity at the DeBary Plant should 

20 we have to do so. 

21 We have summarized in Exhibit 6 six reasons why we 

~ .. ed the project . The first on Exhibit 6 shows that we need 

• tbe liae bJ December 1995 to avoid a single contingency 

24 outage of the Sanford-North Longwood line. What that means 

25 is that Florida Power Corporation, like all the other 

GOMIA AND ASSOCIATES 
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utilities in Florida, plans its transmission system so that 

2 the loss of any one transmission line will not result in any 

3 other transndssion line overloading beyond its emergency 

4 rating. And by 1995 without this line, if we lose the 

5 Banford-Borth Longwood line, another line will overload, and 

6 this proposed line will solve that problem. 

7 There are, number one through number five on this 

8 chart are similar transndssion reliability related reasons 

9 for the line that Mr. Odom, the second witness, will cover 

10 in more detai 1 • 

11 The last on the bullet chart is the second need 

12 that I said. It adds generation siting flexibility to 

13 Florida Power, because if we had this line we'll be able to 

14 add 450 more megawatts of generating capacity at the DeBary 

15 Plant than we can after 1992. After 1992 the transmission 

16 capability out of that site will be used up, and we can't 

17 add any more capacity there. It's a 2,000 acre site. By 

18 the end of '92 it will have 650 megawatts, so we could 

19 support with its existing infrastructure more capacity . 

20 

21 

Our current plans don't call for us to add our 

next peaking capacity at DeBary. We are planning to do it 

22 at Intercession City, which is on the sound side of this 

23 Greater Orlando Area. It has excess transmission 

24 capability, and it has some other infrastructure reasons for 

25 making ua want to go to Intercession City next. But 
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Intercession City has a land problem. It's a very wet area, 

2 and there's a risk from a licensing standpoint that we may 

3 not get the license to add the capacity there in time for 

4 '93. And having this transmission line in place will allow 

5 us a back-up site in DeBary, which is the next best place to 

6 put it. Adding the transmission line and making DeBary 

7 capable of adding more capacity will also cover other 

8 contingencies that we hope who don't happen, but might . 

9 We may, we may have missed our load forecasts. 

10 The load forecasts may be higher than we anticipate. Our QF 

11 contracts that we've signed up, as you all know we have 

12 signed up quite a few, we don't know how successful the in-

13 service dates will be. There may be some slippage, and if 

14 so, it's good to have a backup. 

15 Our conservation and load management programs are 

16 also very aggressive, and should we undershoot our goals, we 

17 may have to add more peaking capacity, and this site is an 

18 ideal place to do it. 

19 And also the third 500 kV line, as you all know 

~ Plorida Power Corporation is planning to build, is scheduled 

21 for coadng on line early in '97, and should there be a delay 

~ in that project we may need to have a place to add 

23 additional peaking capacity. 

24 And for those reasons that summarizes -- concludes 

25 my summary of my testimony. 
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24 

MS. STUART : The witness is available for cross . 

2 CROSS EXAMINATION 

3 BY MR. ELIAS : 

4 Q Mr . Poley, would you refer to Page 7, Lines 21 

s through 23 of your direct testimony. 

6 A Yes, sir . 

7 Q You state that the DeBary site is a backup to the 

8 Intercession City, to Intercession City for the 1993 CTs. 

9 In your summary you indicated that the main concern with the 

10 Intercession City site was the nature of the site itself, 

11 and the wetlands. Are there any other concerns as far as 

12 the licensing for that site? 

A Ko particular ones . We'll have to add additional 

at tbat site in order to -- we have to buy additional 

15 land ill Ol'der · to avoid 801M of the wetlands . The excess 

16 land we have available Oil the •ite are very wet and we'll 

17 have to acquire the additional 1 and . 

18 Q What is the likelihood at this point in time that 

19 PPC will have to use an alternative site to the Intercession 

20 City site? 

21 A I believe that we'll be able to accomplish the 

22 Intercession City site. It's a matter of prudent planning 

~ we think to consider fallback options, should it be 

24 necessary. 

25 MR . ELIAS: Okay . I would ask Ms . Brady to go 
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ahead and pass out exhibits, what have been marked as 

2 Exhibits No. 8 and 9. 

3 COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Ei9ht and nine, we don't 

4 have them. 

5 CHAIRMAN BEARD: Okay . We'll identify FPC's 1990 

6 Ten Year Site Plan, Pa9es 50 to 55, as Exhibit 8. And 

7 PPC's 1991 Ten Year Site Plan, Pa9es 54 to 58, as 

a Exhibit 9. 

9 (Exhibit Nos . 8 and 9 Identified) 

10 BY MR. ELIAS: 

11 Q Mr . Poley, would you turn to Page 52 of the 1990 

12 site plan. 

13 A All ri9ht. 

14 Q It indicates that Anclote has been chosen as the 

15 alternative site for installation of combustion turbines . 

16 But in the 1991 site plan there is no mention of the Anclote 

17 site. What has chan9ed from one year to the next to 

18 eliminate that site? 

19 A In 1991 a re-look at all the possible sites, 

20 includin9 Anclote, was done. And I would have to refer back 

21 to that atudy to get the speci fie reason. There was a 

~ ranking and a weightin9 of points for various attributes, 

23 and obvioualy Anclote didn't score well the last time we 

24 looked at it. Thin9s, things do change. And I'm afraid I 

25 can't give you a definitive answer right now. 
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COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Would it have anything to do 

2 with the classification of Anclote as outstanding 

3 waters? 

4 WITRESS FOLEY: I doubt it, Commissioner Easley. 

5 The peaking capacity would not normally have an effect 

6 on the surrounding water. There is no cooling water 

7 per se for the peaking unit like a steam plant would 

8 have. 

9 I would venture to, without having benefit of 

10 actually looking at the study, the transmission 

11 capability out of the Anclote plant is not good . The 

12 fuel delivery modes to Anclote Plant are not extremely 

13 good. There is no port. We have to pipe by pipeline 

14 the fuel across county to the existing steam plant, and 

15 some of the other sites have a fuel delivery 

16 infrastructure that is preferable . 

17 COMMISSIOKER WILSON: Was Anclote the place where 

18 that cross-Gulf gas pipeline that was suggested a 

19 number of years ago, somebody was working on it, was 

20 that one of the places where it was going to come 

21 ashore? 

22 WtTM!SS POLEY: That is correct, Commissioner. I 

23 think it was the ANR Pipeline. 

24 COMMISSIONER WILSON: Yeah. 

25 BY MR . ELIAS: 
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Q Similarly on Page 53, towards the bottom of FPC's 

2 1990 site plana, it indicates that the P . L. Bartow site has 

3 been chosen as an alternative site for the installation of 

4 combustion turbines. But there is no mention of the Bartow 

5 site in the 1991 site plan . Are you able to tell us what 

6 has changed with respect to that site? 

7 A Again, Bartow was evaluated in the 1991 along with 

s the other sites and didn't score as well . What specific 

9 scoring attribute it didn't do as well on I can't say for 

10 sure. Again, transmission is a problem at Bartow. We are 

11 traa.mission limited at Bartow. 

12 To bring additional generating capacity off of 

13 Weedon Island additional transmission circuits would have to 

14 be constructed, and that is one of the considerations 

15 obviously for the Intercession City being the prime location 

16 for the '93 is the transmission capability is already there 

17 and no additional transmission will be required. Also 

18 Intercession City has an existing oil pipeline from Tampa 

19 Bay, GATX I believe is the owner, and that is the way the 

~ fuel is delivered to the Intercession City site is by 

21 pipeline from Tampa Bay, and that is very cost effective. 

Q Would using the DeBary site as an alternative to 

~ Intercession City instead of Anclote or Bartow make the 

24 DeBary aite transmission limited? 

25 A The DeBary site after '92 will have no additional 
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tranamiaaion capability, so therefore , it will be 

2 tranamiasion limited. The addition of this proposed 230 kV 

3 line would add 450 megawatts of additional capability to be 

4 aited there before the transmission limit is reached. 

5 Q If the additional CTs are added at DeBary, would 

6 the site then be transmission limited, after the 230 kV line 

1 ia built? 

8 A Ko, it would not. The proposed Intercessi on City 

9 CTa are 340 megawatts, and it would have the capability of 

10 450 after the line is in-service, leaving an excess of I 

11 think 110 megawatts. 

12 Q All right. In Exhibit 2, which has been 

13 identified as JI0-1 --

14 MS. STUART: Mr. Elias , excuse me . Are you 

15 referring to the blue bounded documented? 

16 MJt. ELIAS: Yes. 

17 MS . STUART: Which is the study. 

18 MR. ELIAS: The Study. 

19 CHAIRMAN BEARD: We haven't marked it for 

~ identification yet I don't think here, although it ' s in 

21 the prehearing statement . Do you want to do that now? 

~ MR. ELIAS: That would be fine. 

23 CHAIRMAN BEARD : It would actually be sponsored --

24 MS. STUART : By Mr. Odom . 

25 CHAIRMAN BEARD: Okay . That will be identified as 
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Eahibit Mo. 2, and that is the, that is Exhibit 1 to 

2 the petition to determine need. All right. 

3 (Bahibit Mo. 2 identified) 

4 BY MR. ELIAS: 

5 Q ~urning to Page 24, it states, "It is possible 

6 that C!a could be needed at DeBary in late 1993 if the 

7 Intercession City site fails, but that the transmission 

8 necessary to support the generating capacity without 

9 violating single contingency criteria would not be in 

10 service unti 1 late 1995." 

11 If this is the case how can DeBary be an 

12 alternative for Intercession City's 1993 need with a 1995 

13 trana.taaion line in-service date? 

14 A It's a matter of risk taking. The problem to 

15 which this refers would last two years and would mean that 

16 there would be limdts on the output of the capacity at 

17 DeBary should the DeBary should the Sanford to North 

18 Longwood line, I believe is the one, if that should fail, 

19 should have an outage, and then the overload would occur and 

~ it would be for the period of time that that line is out. 

21 So it's a matter of being at risk for whatever period of 

22 time that line is out. It's not something that we would 

n prefer to do. It's a matter of balancing other factors that 

24 make the DeBary site a good place to put generation from a 

25 coat standpoint, infrastructure standpoint. And that we 
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1 decided that we would probably take the risk for that two-

2 year period recognizing that the outage window for a failed 

3 line should be of short duration, and hopefully it wouldn't 

4 occur, since these are peaking units, hopefully it wouldn't 

5 occur coincident with the time when the peaking units are 

6 needed to serve peak 1 oad. 

7 Q If the DeBary site had to be used as a site for 

8 the 1993 Intercession City CTs, wouldn't any related 

9 trana~aaion needs be associated transmission and handled 

10 other than through a transmission line sitin;, a corridor, 

11 a dete~nation of need and approval? In other words, as 

12 part of the determination of need for the additional 

13 generating capacity? 

14 A Peaking capacity is not covered under the Power 

15 Plant Siting Act. Steam units are over 7 5 me9awat ts . So 

16 that's one of the problems. It takes lon;er to get the 

17 traa.miaaion line permitted than it would to not permit it. 

18 It takes longer to get the whole project done for the 

19 traa.~aaion line, the permitting and the construction, than 

~ it does juat to construct the peakin; unit, because the 

21 peaking unit doesn't require the site act front-end process. 

~ Q Setting aside for the moment consideration of any 

~ other need in this petition, such as the 1995 and 1997 

24 single contingency violations, if the DeBary site was needed 

25 for the 1993 CT•, would there be a more logical circuit for 
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the associated transmission, i.e., a more direct link to 

2 Intercession City? 

3 A Prom DeBary? 

4 Q Yes . 

5 A Ko, that would not satisfy the other needs, the 

6 other transmission reliability needs that this project 

7 provides. 

8 Q Setting adds those two contingencies, 1995 and 

9 '97, would there be a more logical circuit? 

10 MS. STUART: Excuse me . Can I ask for 

11 clarification, because I'm not sure I understand the 

12 question. Are you asking a circuit to connect DeBary 

13 to Intercession City? 

14 MR. ELIAS: Aa a back-up site for the CTs, in 

15 other words ignoring the other -- I have enumerated 

16 1995 and 1997 single contingency violations. 

17 MS. STUART: Right. 

18 

19 

MR. ELIAS: 

MS . STUART : 

Just ignoring those two . 

Is the question would the Company 

~ then propose to build the line from DeBary to 

21 Interceasion City? 

~ MR. ELIAS: In other words, is there more lo9ical 

~ circuit to serve this, that function than the one being 

24 proposed. 

25 A My answer is no . Mr . Odom can cover in greater 
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1 detail than I. He has studied exhaustive alternatives, and 

2 the project that is proposed is the best alternative not 

3 only for the transmission but for the power plant citing 

4 aspect as well . 

5 COMMISSIOMER DEASOM : How many miles is it from 

6 DeBary to Intercession City? 

7 WITRISS FOLlY: I'm guessing, it's probably 45 to 

8 50 miles, and this line is a 20-mile line we are 

9 talking about. 

10 COMMISSlOMER DEASOM: Thank you. 

11 BY MR. ELIAS: 

12 Q Would you turn to Page 7 of your direct testimony, 

13 atarting on Line 21 through Page 8, Line 8 . It states that, 

14 "The DeBary site is a leading candidate to serve as a 

15 location for future CTs because the licensing and 

16 conatruction lead time for transmission line subject to the 

17 Tranamiaaion Line Siting Act is longer than the licensing 

18 and construction lead time for CTs. It is prudent to add 

19 tranamiaaion that will overcome the DeBary site's 

~ tranamission limitations. The project will address this 

21 need by reliably supporting up to 450 megawatts of 

~ additional CTs at the DeBary site beyond those planned for 

23 1992." 

24 Question, does FPC consider by approving this need 

25 determination , which includes a strategic need for 
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1 generating expansion at the DeBary site that the Commission 

2 is implying prior approval for such expansion? 

3 A Prior approval for peaker expansion? 

4 Q Yea. 

5 A Mo. 

6 Q Okay. Turning to Page 9 of your direct testimony, 

1 atarting with the Line 9, you list examples of possible 

8 contingencies for needing additional capacity at the DeBary 

9 •ite on short notice. 

10 

11 

One, contracted QP capacity may fail -­

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Mr. Elias, excuse me. There 

12 really is not any need to read them in to the record. 

13 We've got them. 

14 

15 

MR. ELIAS: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Thank you. 

16 BY MR. ELIAS: 

17 Q In PPC'a recent petition for approval of eight 

18 negotiated contracts, the amount of negotiated capacity 

19 exceeded the expected need by 156 megawatts for this reason. 

~ Does PPC feel the reliability of those contracts is such 

21 that back-up generation is necessary in addition to over-

~ solicited need? 

23 A We don't know is the answer. We hope that all of 

24 the capacity that we have contracted for from the QFs will 

25 come on line. We believe the state needs the capacity. But 
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1 ahould it fail to come on line, and we don't know the 

2 likelihood of that, we are looking ahead for fallback 

3 poaitions . And Plorida Power Corporation has to meet its 

4 customers' loads, demands, and we are just trying to plan 

5 ahead. 

6 We really don't have a great deal of experience 

7 under our belts on getting a lot of QFs on line, not that 

8 tbe~, ..OJ have failed, it's just that we are early in the 

9 proceaa. We don't know what to expect. 

10 Q On Page 12 of what has been marked as Exhibit No. 

11 2, which is the Study, it indicates that FPC as a base ease 

12 uaea a peak load forecast that is a hundred and 10 percent 

13 of the load forecast in the FCG databank, and that databank 

14 ia uaed for modeling. Doea FPC feel that a hundred and 10 

15 percent multiplier is still not conservative enough? 

16 COMHISSIOKER EASLEY: I want to ask you, compared 

17 to what? I don't understand the question. 

18 MR. ELIAS: We are talking about Example No. 2 of 

19 the possible contingencies that are listed on your 

~ direct testimony. 

21 COMMISSIOKER EASLEY: Okay. 

22 A I believe the way to answer that is that in the 

~ transmission planning studies we do use a hundred and 10 

24 percent of the forecast load for making sure that 

25 tranamisaion lines can handle all the load that may be out 

GONIA AND ASSOCIATES 



35 

there. Back in my testimony where it's talking about we may 

2 need additional generating capacity because our forecasts 

3 .. y be wrong, we plan for generating capacity entirely 

4 different. We use a dual planning criteria of loss of load 

5 probability of a tenth of a day, and a winter reserve margin 

6 of 15 percent over our forecasted peak load . So we are 

7 actually planning on generating capacity having at least 15 

8 percent more than our forecasted peak, not just 10 percent. 

9 And a forecast, aa the Commdssion is painfully aware, is a 

10 difficult thing to produce specially very far into the 

11 future, and this is merely pointing out the need for 

12 contingency response in case we are off with our forecasts 

13 .ore than we hope we are. I don't know whether that 

14 answered your question or not. 

15 Q Baa.ple Mo. 4, you speak to the 500 kV tie line 

16 from Plorida to the Southern System may be delayed from its 

17 plaDDed in-service date . If this occurred FPC might have to 

18 add CTs to maintain system reliability . What kind of delays 

19 are anticipated such that new generation rather than short­

would be necessary? 

our generation planning we are 

.. ~ .. ~~-~~ ~ ... traaa~ssion line adding sufficient 

~ reliability to our ability to serve our customers that we 

24 are avoiding 500 megawatts of generating capacity. We are 

25 saying we are not going to build 500 megawatts of generating 
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capacitJ we would have otherwise built had this 500 kV line 

2 not been here. 

3 So if the 500 kV line is not here on time, we are 

4 short eaaentially 500 me9awatts in our generation plan . And 

5 if the line is delayed for any number of reasons by a year, 

6 we could be the 500 me9awatts short of being able to meet 

7 our customers demands, which is very significant . And 

8 »urchaaed power in the state may or may not be available to 

9 the extent of 500 megawatts. If it is and if it looks like 

10 it'a a abort-term delay, that may very well be the prudent 

11 thin9 to do is to purchase in the state and only build part 

12 of that 500 me9awatts. 

13 But those are things that we can't know for 

14 certain what ia 90ing to happen. So we are merely pointing 

15 out that we need to be able to build peaking capacity if 

16 that ia what is needed to make up the shortfall, if the 500 

17 kV line ia delayed. 

18 COMMISSIONER WILSON: What was the estimated in-

19 aervice date of that 500 kV tie 1 ine? 

~ WITNESS FOLEY: The current estimated in-service 

21 date or the-- I guess that is January '97. At one 

~ time I believe we told you all we were hoping to do it 

~ in January of '96. 

24 COMMISSIONER WILSON: Why, what caused the 

25 slippage in that date? 
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WI~ESS POLEY: The complication of the process of 

2 getting a connection to the north. 

3 COHNISSIOMER WILSOM: You mean a connection with 

4 Southern Company or 

5 WI~ESS POLEY: Yes. 

6 COHKISSIOMER WILSOM: -- the route, the corridor? 

7 WI~BSS POLEY: Well, the route is yet, the hurdle 

8 yet to be crossed. Florida Power has ownership of a 

9 railroad right-of-way from Monticello down to 

10 Dunnellen, generally along u.s . 19. We own it. It was 

11 an abandoned railroad right-of-way that we purchased on 

12 a contingency really anticipating that some day it 

13 might be used for something like this. We hope that 

14 that ndght be considered and be a potential corridor. 

That is a process that has yet to take place in the 

~*,u.•, and it may or may not wind up being the actual 

lo that step has yet to take place. 

18 CBAIRNia BEARD: Your problem now is the 

19 Oglethorpe/Southern Company debate. 

~ WITBESS POLEY : Yea, I think we've got 

21 COHKISSIOMER WILSOM: Is that over? 

~ WITBESS POLEY : I believe it is. I can't say for 

~ certain. We've made some good strides. We've got a 

24 handshake, a verbal understanding between the Florida 

25 aide, which is Florida Power and Florida Power and 
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1 Li9ht, and also the Georgia aide involving Oglethorpe 

2 and Georgia Power, and have reached agreement on the 

3 way to make the tie and the way that the export 

4 capability from Georgia will be split up. And that has 

5 been the complication, of when you build a connection 

6 to Georgia it creates the ability to export power out 

7 of Georgia, and they have what is called the integrated 

B tranaadaaion system. 

9 I'm telling you more than you probably want to 

10 know. But that's an agreement between the four 

11 utilities in Georgia, and that complicated the issue 

12 aa to bow to divide up the export capability, and that 

13 slowed us down. 

14 COKMISSIORER EASLEY: Have you got anything in 

15 writing? 

16 WI'l'IIESS POLEY: We do not. That's why I say we 

17 have a handshake and a verbal agreement. We are 

18 yea, fingers crossed, and we have a draft letter of 

19 intent that we are scheduled to share with the Georgia 

~ utilities for them to counter back with word changes 

21 nezt week. And our plan is, and the Georgia utilities 

~ have agreed to this kind of a deadline for the end of 

23 July to have a letter of intent signed. 

24 Again, that is not a contract. That is one step 

25 better than a handshake in the -- and with that letter 
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of intent though, we feel that is strong enough to then 

2 come to the Commdssion with our need petition . 

3 COMMISSIONER WILSON: That is your next step after 

4 JOU get that letter of intent, but before you get a 

5 contract, you will come to the Commission for 

certification of need for that . Mow, will you have 

corridor? 

WlftB88 POLEY: Mo. 

9 CONMISSIOMIR WILSON: When will that occur? 

10 WITNESS POLEY : That occurs in the process of 

11 proposing alternative corridors, and the DER process 

12 handles that, the selection of those corridors. 

13 COMMISSIONER WILSON : And then after the DER 

14 finiahea that process, you begin acquisition? 

15 WITNESS POLEY: That is correct. 

16 COMMISSIONER WILSON: Does it follow, the projects 

17 scheduled as Appendix 8, do all of your projects pretty 

18 much follow that kind of schedule in Appendix B in your 

19 Exhibit 2, which is Exhibit 1 to your petition? 

~ WITNESS POLEY: Yea, this is a very generic 

21 achedule that would apply as well to the 500 kV line, I 

~ believe. 

23 COMMISSIONER WILSON : Where in this process on 

24 that achedule is the Public Service Commission's 

25 determination of need? 
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MIYBISS POLlY: December of '95 is the application 

2 to the DER, and July 

3 COMMISSIONER MILSON: You said '95. 

4 MITRISS POLEY: I'm sorry, your question was when 

5 ia the application of need, it's not shown on here. 

6 MS. STUART: Ezcuse me, Commissioner. 

7 COMMISSIOIER MILSON: Obviously we are here in the 

8 adddle July, and I can pick out July, and then prepare 

9 and subadt transmission line sitings. 

10 MS. STUART: Are you asking about whare we are in 

11 this hearing on this chart or on the 500? 

12 COMMISSIONER MILSON: On this chart. 

13 

14 

MS. STUART: Okay. 

COMMISSIOKER MILSOK: On this chart it shows 

15 corridor selection as occurring prior to and 

16 contemporaneous with the line siting application 

17 proceaa. But for the 500 kV line that is going north 

18 to Georgia, you will not do corridor selection prior to 

19 applying for or beginning the line certification 

~ proceaa? 

21 WITKESS POLEY: We will, and I misspoke. The 

~ selection, the decision has not been made on the 500 

~ kV corridor. We are obviously gathering data, lookin~ 

24 at alternative corridors, one of which I mentioned, the 

25 railroad right-of-way. 
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CONNISSIONER NILSON: By the time you come to us 

2 with that certification on the 500 kV , you will have 

3 selected alternative corridors ~oin~ north to Geor~ia 

4 to tie in to the Southern System? 

s NITRBSS FOLEY: I believe we will have most of 

6 thoae aelected. There may be some additional work that 

7 cropa up between the time of the need and the DER 

8 actual review of the work. 

9 COHNISSIOBBR NILSON: And does site acquisition or 

10 land ac~uisition occur -- which phase of this that is 

11 shown on this chart will, would be where you would 

12 ac~uire the land for the 500 kV one ~oin~ north if it 

13 follows this same pattern? 

14 NITRBSS FOLEY: It would happen after the bar 

15 shown in the middle of '92, the certification hearing 

16 and final action by sitin~ board. 

17 COMMISSIONER WILSON: Is that is considered part 

18 of the en~ineerin~, that phase that is labeled 

19 engineerin~ here? 

~ NITRESS FOLEY: That would be where, approximately 

21 where it would take place, yes, in that timeframe. 

~ It's just, it's not shown, the land acquisition as an 

23 item, but it would occur in overlap with the 

24 engineerin~. 

25 COMKISSIOBER NILSOB: Do you have land acquisition 
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in this, this siting application? 

2 WITRESS FOLEY: We have not begun land acquisition 

3 in this. 

4 COMMISSIOKER WILSOK: Would it be necessary to 

5 acquire additional land? 

6 WITKESS FOLEY: Depending on the corridor chosen, 

7 the obvious choices to try and utilize existing 

8 corridors, if possible, and those will be evaluated. 

9 CONNISSIOBIR WILSOB: Do you have existing 

10 corridors that would run between DeBary and --

11 WITKESS POLEY: There are partial corridors that 

12 can be uaed. I'm not certain there is a 

13 COMMISSIOKER WILSON: A continuous? 

14 WITKESS POLEY: -- a continuous, but Mr. Odom 

15 would be a better one to say definitively on that. 

16 COMMISSIONER DEASOB: The year slippage in the 

17 estimated time for the 500 kV line, would you attribute 

18 that to disagreements among the Georgia utilities, 

19 amongst themselves, or was that some type of problem 

~ between Florida and Georgia? 

21 WITNESS POLEY: The former, and I'm not sure that 

~ I would want to characterize it as a disagreement. 

23 It's an evolving process that the Georgia utilities 

24 have agreed how they are going to share ownership and 

25 uae of the transmission network in Georgia. They had 
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never ~uite settled how they were going to treat the 

ezport capability out of Georgia, and in fact Georgia 

Power had it all, and they settled. They reached an 

agreement that they would share part of the existing 

ezport capability out of Georgia with the other owners 

in thia 1~8, Integrated Transmission System. The other 

owners are Oglethorpe, the major one, 22 percent. 

~here ia the City of Dalton, and the, it's MEAG, 

Municipal, it's the Municipal Utility Association in 

Georgia owns also a small portion. 

So thoae four entities finally agreed how they 

would aplit up the ezport capability out of Georgia, 

and that hadn't happened at the time we were trying to 

identify where and bow to make our interconnection in 

Georgia. 

COMMISSIORER DBASOB: But you believe at least 

verbally that that, an agreement has been reached and 

there is a sign of accord? 

WI~ESS POLEY: And I'll have to qualify it and 

tell you that it's an accord between Georgia Power and 

Oglethorpe, MEAG and Dalton have listened favorably and 

have not yet come to a complete affirmation, but it's 

the Georgia utilities -- it's the Oglethorpe and 

Georgia Power's opinion that they will. 

COMMISSIOBER DEASON: Thank you . 
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HR. ELIAS: The staff has no further questions 

fram Mr. Poley. We do have aome questions that are 

directed to Mr. Odom that Mr. Odom is quite likely to 

aay that Mr. Poley would be the moat appropriate 

individual to answer those, and rather than ask them 

twice, we'll reserve the right to recall Mr . Foley. 

CBAIIMAR BEARD : Don't leave town. Okay. 

Redirect? 

MS. STUART: Hone, thank you. 

COMMISSIOHIR DEASON: I have just a few questions 

now that staff ia finished. 

CHAIRMAN BIARD: Go ahead. 

COMMISSIOH!R DEASON: From the big picture 

perspective , what you are saying is that t he main 

reasons for the construction of this line are a single 

phase, single line contingencies, and you enumerate 

two, one in the 1995 timeframe, and one in 1997 

timeframe, ia that correct? They are the two main 

reasons for this particular line that we are discussing 

today? 

WITK!SS FOLEY : They are two main reasons . I hope 

that the others carry a lot of weight also . 

COMMISSIOH!R DEASON: Well, let me ask you this 

question. If we were to assume hypothetically that all 

of the QP capacity which you have now subscribed to 
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actually comes on line and there is no need for CT 

capacity in the 1993 timeframe, regardless of whether 

it'• Interceasion City or DeBary, it's just not needed 

at all, would you still recommend that this line be 

built? 

MIHESS POLEY: Yes. 

CONKISSIOBER DEASON: And that's because of the 

aingle line contingencies which you discussed in 1995 

and 1997? 

MIT.ESS POLEY: And also the other three, number 

three, four and five that you haven't heard about yet 

that Mr. Odom is going to cover, and they are very 

important also. 

COMMISSIOBER DEASON: But as I understand item 

three on that list, the double contingency factor, this 

line would help but would not solve that problem. 

MITKESS POLEY: That is correct. What it will do 

will, I believe the number is a hundred and 69 percent 

of emergency rating is what occurs on the line that is 

overloaded. With this new line in place that drops 

aignificantly, and what it allows the dispatchers to do 

ia to make some maneuvering attempts, some switching, 

aome re-dispatching of generators. 

A line is likely to withstand some overload over 

its emergency rating and the dispatcher is liable to 
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take a chance and allow it to do that if he knows it's 

2 only a small amount, and be bas got time to do some 

3 other things. And we believe that that is a great 

4 benefit to avoid putting a large number of customers in 

5 the dark, which is what happens if this double 

6 contingency outage occurs. 

7 COMNISSIO•ER DIASOM: Okay. Thank you. 

8 CBAIRMAR BEARD: A hundred and 69 percent over the 

9 rated capacity of the line? 

10 WI~ESS POLEY: The emergency, it's a hundred and 

11 69 percent of the emergency rating. There's a normal 

12 rating and an emergency rating. 

13 CBAIRMAR BEARD: And that is over what length of 

14 time? 

15 WiftESS POLEY: It' a instantaneous. We just don'~ 

16 want to see it. 

17 CBAIRMAR BEARD: Normally I thought your ratings 

18 though were baaed, you can withstand that kind of load, 

19 but only the higher the load the shorter the duration 

~ of time that you can withstand that kind of pressure. 

21 WITKESS POLEY: That's true . From an o~~rating 

~ standpoint, there are operating limits that are 

n different than our planning limits, and I think that's, 

24 I miaapoke, I think you are exactly right . When we do 

25 our planning studies we look at them as instantaneous. 
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COMMISSIOKER DEASON: The 1995 and 1997 

2 timeframes, which we were discussing, what is driving 

3 those timeframes? Just increased demand at certain 

4 load centers and being able to get the energy from one 

5 site to where it's needed, that is what is driving 

6 those timeframes? 

7 WITKESS FOLEY: That's exactly it, the load growth 

8 in the area. The load growth is substantial. 

9 COMMISSIOKER DEASON: Of course, you also 

10 mentioned load growth as one of the reasons why you may 

11 need coabuation turbine peakinv capacity earlier than 

12 what is expected because growth could be higher than 

13 expected. 

14 WITKESS POLEY: Yes. 

15 COMKISSIOKER DEASON: Okay. Could that also, the 

16 growth in demand also necessitate the transmission 

11 capacity being needed earlier than the 1995 and 1997 

18 timeframes? 

19 WITKESS FOLEY: It certainly could. 

~ COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay, thank you. 

21 CHAIRMAN BEARD: Okay. Any other questions, 

~ Comndssioners? 

~ One last time, redirect? 

24 

25 

MS. STUART: No, sir. 

CHAIRMAN BEARD: Witness is excused. 
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COMMISSIONER WILSON: Let me ask one more 

2 question. The time slippage of one year from '96 to 

3 '97 on the 500 kV line north, was that timeframe that 

4 you originally had posited the result of when you 

5 thought you would need it, or when you thought you 

6 could get it built? 

7 WITNESS FOLEY: The latter , when we thought we 

8 could get it built. 

9 COMMISSIONER WILSON: When is it that you think 

10 you are going to need it? 

11 WITNESS POLEY: I think we need it right now. 

12 COMMISSIONER WILSON: Is there any way that you 

13 can recapture any of that one-year delay that you have 

14 seen there? 

15 WITNESS POLEY: Comadssioner, we are going to work 

16 as diligently and as hard as we can to make up any time 

17 lost. It's certainly a very high priority within our 

18 corporation . We've got a whole project team assigned 

19 to do nothing but that, a project manager and a lot of 

time, is aimed at getting 

project accomplished . 

22 CHAIRMAN BEARD : If you don't run in to a 

23 Kathleen/Tarpon problem? 

24 WITNESS POLEY : Please. 

25 CHAIRMAN BEARD: Okay. The witness is excused. 
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(Witness Poley Excused) 

2 CHAIRMAN BEARD: And while the next witness is 

3 getting ready, we are going to take a 10-minute break. 

4 (Recess) 

5 CHAIRMAK BEARD: Okay. 

6 MS. STUART: Commdssioner, I would move Exhibits 

1 1, 6 and 7. 

8 CHAIRMAK BEARD: Okay. 

9 MR. ELIAS: I move Exhibits 8 and 9. 

10 CHAIRMAK BEARD: Okay . Thank you for reminding 

11 me. 

12 (Exhibit Kos. 1, 6, 7, 8 and 9 received into evidence) 

13 CBAIRMAK BEARD: Okay, and you have your next 

14 witness, and you were previously sworn. 

15 JOHN E. ODOM, JR. 

16 having been produced and previously duly sworn as a witness 

11 on behalf of Florida Power Corporation was examined and 

18 testified as follows: 

19 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

20 BY MS. STUART : 

21 Q Would you please state your name and business 

22 address. 

23 A Yea, I will. My name is John E. Odom, Jr . And my 

24 business address is 3201 34th Street South, St . Petersburg, 

25 Pl or ida. 
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Q And by whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

2 A I am .-ployed by Florida Power Corporation, and 

3 I'm a senior tranaadssion and distribution planning engineer 

4 in the system planning department. 

s Q Mr. Odom, have you prefiled direct testimony in 

6 this docket consisting of 19 pages? 

1 A Yea, I have. 

8 Q Do you have any changes or corrections to that 

9 tea tilllOny? 

10 A Yes, I do. 

11 Q Would you please identify those for us. 

12 A Yea. On Page 15, Line 10, change the 12 to a 14 . 

13 And then on the next page, Page 16, Line 3, change the 12 to 

aaM~• .'Jk,•~ OcSa., with those changes, if I were to 

16 ask you the a..- queatioaa cootained in your prefiled 

17 direct testimony today would your answers be the .... ? 

18 A Yea, they would . 

19 MS. STUART: Mr. Chairman, I would ask that Mr. 

~ Odom'a prefiled direct testimony be inserted in to the 

21 record as though read. 

~ CBAIRMAR BEARD: It will be so inserted. 

23 BY MS. STUAR'l' : 

24 Q Mr. Odom, are there also attached to your 

~ testimony three exhibits which have been identified in the 
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1 prehearing order aa Bxhibi ta 3, 4 and 5? 

2 A Yea, there were. 

3 Q ADd are you also sponsoring the document entitled 

4 •xhibit 1 to the Petition to Determine Need, which is the 

5 blue-bounded study book that haa been identified in the 

6 prehearing order aa Exhibit 2? 

1 A Yea, 1 am. 

8 Q ADd do you have any changes or corrections to any 

9 of thoae exhibi ta? 

10 A Yea, I do. In Exhibit No. 2, Page 5, down two-

11 thirds of the way under Item D, project cost estimate, the 

12 second line under project cost estimate, change the 12 to a 

13 14, and at the end of that same line change 1991 to 1995. 

14 And then two rows -- two linea down change 1991 to 1995. 

15 And in Appendix A right under the title it has 1991 dollars, 

16 that should also be 1995 dollars. 

17 Q And with those corrections is the information 

18 contained on those exhibits true and correct to the best of 

19 your knowledge and belief? 

~ A Yea, they are. 

21 MS. STUART: And, Mr. Chairman, I would ask that 

~ the exhibits be given the numbers they have identified 

~ in the prehearing order. 

24 CHAIRMAN BEARD: Okay. JE0-1, which was 

25 previDualy identified, as Exhibit 2. JE0-2 as Exhibit 
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3. JB0-3 aa Exhibit 4. JE0-4 as Exhibit 5. 

Do JOU want to go ahead and identify these other 

three while we are --

MR. ELIAS: Those are staff? 

MS. STUART: Those aren't mine. 

CBAIRMAK BEARD: Those are staff, okay. Never 

7 mind. 

8 {Exhibit Boa. 3, 4 and 5 Identified) 
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Iatrotgotioa aat Ogalificatioaa 

g. •l .. ae etate your aaae, buaia••• a44r••• and 

occupatioa. 

A. 

g. 

A. 

My naae is John E. Odom, Jr. and my business 

address is 3201 34th St. South, St. Petersburg, 

Florida 33711. I am a senior Transmission & 

Distribution Planning Engineer in the system 

Planning Departaent at Florida Power Corporation. 

Wbat are your 4utiea and reaponaibilitiea in that 

poaitioa? 

As a planning engineer, I am responsible for 

identifying the future transmission needs of FPC 

with adequate lead time to allow for the 

licensing, engineering and construction of new 

transmission or substation projects. I am 

currently the area planner responsible for 

evaluating the transmission system within FPC•s 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 
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Mid-Florida Division, including interconnections 

with other divisions and utilities. In addition, 

I aa involved in special projects on an as-needed 

basis . 

your e4ucational background . 

I graduated from Lake-Sumter Community College 

with an Associate of Arts Degree in 1975, and from 

University of Central Florida with a Bachelor of 

Science in Engineering Degree in 1979. 

Please s•rr=ari•• your professional ezperience. 

I have approximately five years of Design 

Engineering experience and seven and one-half 

years of Systea Planning experience, all with 

Florida Power Corporation . 

are you a a.aber of any professional orqani•ations 

or iD4ustry qroups? 

Yes, I am a registered Professional Engineer in 

the State of Florida. In addition, I am a member 

of the Power Engineering Society of the IEEE. I 

am also a member of the Application of Probability 

Methods Subcommittee of that Society's Power 

System Engineering Committee . 

2 
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BaYt you preYioualy teatified before thia 

c-iaaioa? 
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Yes. In August, 1987, I testified on substation 

4 and tranaaission issues in a territorial dispute 

5 between FPC and suwannee Valley Electric 

6 Cooperative, Inc. (Docket No. 870096-EU). 

7 

8 rurpoae of ftatiaou 

9 Q. Wbat ia the purpott of JOur teatiaoay? 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. Tbt purpoae of ay testiaony is to describe the 

technical aspects of the DeBary-Winter Sprinqs 

230 kV tranaaiaaion line (the "Project") and to 

d .. onstrate FPC's need for the Project. I will 

explain FPC's transaission planninq process, 

including our tranaaission reliability criteria. 

I will deacribe why additional 230 kV transmission 

ia needed by the end of 1995 to maintain 

acceptable transaission reliability in the Greater 

Orlando Area and to enable FPC to reliably 

diapers• power froa future CTs that may be added 

at the DeBary Generatinq site. I will explain how 

FPC deterained that the Project is the best 

alternative to aeet these needs, and will describe 

other benefits that the Project provides. I will 

alao explain the adverse consequences to FPC and 
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its custoaers if approval of the Project is 

delayed or denied. 

are you aponaorinq any ezbibita •• part of your 

teatiaony? 
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Yes. Exhibit ~ (JE0-1) is the report titled 

"Determination of Need for DeBary-Winter Springs 

230 kV Trans•ission Project" that was filed in 

this docket on June 3, 1991. I have also prepared 

Exhibits~ (JE0-2) to~ (JE0-4), which are 

attached to this testimony. 

13 ll•ppinq rroo••• 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

g. 

A. 

lleaae 4eaoribe FPC'a tranaaiaaion planninq 

proo•••· 

FPC conducts a comprehensive transmission study 

each year to identify future transmission 

improvements needed to maintain acceptable 

transmission reliability. In addition, we conduct 

special studies on an as-needed basis when 

significant changes occur that could impact the 

current plan. FPC uses the Multiple Contingency 

Load Flow (MCLF) program to identify areas of 

concern. This program models the outage of 

individual transmission lines or transformers at 
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A. 

57 

various load levels to identify areas that need 

further review. Once an area of concern has been 

identified, a planning engineer conducts an in­

depth analysis of the area. This analysis 

deteraines the extent of the problem, identifies 

and evaluates possible solutions, and selects a 

reca.aended alternative for inclusion in FPC's 

capital facilities plan. 

Pl ... • -.plaiD the reliability criteria uae4 •• 

the baais for plaaaiDq r.c•s traa .. issioD ayat ... 

FPC baa developed various criteria, consistent 

with Florida Electric Power Coordinating Group 

(FOG) Planning Criteria, to ensure that the 

tranaaission system will perform in a reliable 

aanner. FPC designs its transmission system so 

that, under noraal conditions (~, with no 

transaission or transformer outages), the flow on 

any line or transformer will be below its normal 

rating. This criteria must be met for any 

reasonable generation dispatch, including 

situations where any single generating unit is out 

of service for scheduled maintenance. Therefore, 

a single generating unit outage is considered to 

be a noraal condition. 
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In addition, the system is designed so that no 

lines or transformers will exceed their emergency 

ratings in the event of the loss of any single 

trans•ission line or transformer (a "single 

contingency") . FPC's criteria also provide that 

the voltages at any bus that serves residential or 

co ... rcial custo•ers should not drop below 95% of 

ita na.inal voltage under single contingency 

conditions. 

Wbat other faotora are uae4 in assessing 

tr .... iaaion reliability? 

When FPC conducts a study of an area, the planner 

considers other factors that may be important to 

the specific area . These factors may include the 

likely duration of an outage, the remedial action 

that could be taken to react to an outage, the 

possibility that •ultiple contingencies could 

result fro• a single event, and the need to 

withstand events that could separate large load 

center• fro• the sources of generation. 

Wbat aa&lJaea 4i4 you perfor. in investigating the 

aeed for the Project? 
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The analysis included an in-depth study of all 

single 230 kV line outaqes and any double circuit 

line outages in the study area as shown on the map 

attached as Exhibit_:? (JE0-2). This analysis 

vas perfo~ usinq the FOG and FPC 1990/1991 

tranaaission data bases and our computerized load 

flov proqr-. 

~ analysis concentrated on line outaqes that 

~d cause other lines in the area to overload. 

~ voltage at each bus was also examined; 

however, this was not a siqnificant factor in the 

study, since low voltaqes were not identified as a 

probl .. under any sinqle continqency. The study 

included an exaaination of how the qeneration 

dispatch affected power flows on the transmission 

systaa in the study area. 

19 .... for fro1Ht 

20 g. 

21 

22 A. 

23 

24 

25 

-..t specific factors show a need for a44itional 

traa.aissioa ia the study area by 1995? 

The study identified two items of concern that 

indicate a need tor transmission improvements by 

1995. The first is a violation of sinqle 

continqency criteria that occurs in 1995 when the 
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outage of the Sanford-North Longwood 230 kV line 

causes the Sanford-Sylvan-North Longwood line to 

overload and exceed its emergency rating (the 

"1995 single contingency"). Service to 

approxiaately 95,000 customers could be affected 

by this single contingency. This is the type of 

single contingency that FPC ordinarily designs its 

transaission system to withstand. 

The second itea of concern is that an outage of 

the Sanford-Altaaonte and Sanford-North Longwood 

linea, which share common structures for 

approxiaately 12 miles, causes a severe 

overloading of the sanford-Sylvan-North Longwood 

line. This double contingency could totally 

separate the generation at DeBary and at FPL's 

Sanford Plant from the Greater Orlando Area, and 

has the potential to impact service to 

approxiaately 500,000 customers as the result of a 

single event (~, the loss of a single 

transaission structure). This particular double 

circuit outage is a problem that FPC believes 

should be addressed from a reliability viewpoint, 

even though our criteria do not require the 

transmission system to be able to withstand every 
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double contingency. The double-circuit outage 

problem and the 1995 single contingency are 

referred to together as the "DeBary-North Longwood 

corridor violations." 

Q. are there aay other reliability probl ... in tbe 

area that au•t be a44re••e4? 

A. Yea. By December, 1997, the outage of the North 

Longwood-Winter Springs line causes the Stanton­

Rio Pinar line to reach its emergency rating (the 

•1997 single contingency" or the "Stanton-Rio 

Pinar violation"). Service to approximately 

16,000 customers could be affected by this single 

contingency. Again, this is the type of single 

contingency that FPC's system is typically 

deai,..s to with•tand. 

Finally, by December, 1997, the single contingency 

loss of the Rio Pinar-Stanton line will cause the 

North Longwood-Winter Springs line to exceed its 

normal rating, requiring corrective action that 

could affect service to approximately a,ooo 

customers. 
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The Project strengthens the 230 kV system so that 

it can withatand either the 1995 or 1997 single 

contingency without causing any transmission line 

in the area to exceed its normal rating. The 

Project also addresses the double circuit outage 

situation by significantly reducing the overload 

on the Sanford-Sylvan-North Longwood line. While 

the overloading i• not eliminated, the improvement 

will give FPC's system dispatchers more time to 

respond to such an outage in a controlled manner. 

The results of these studies, showing line 

loadings with and without the Project, are 

presented in the table attached as Exhibit ~ 
(JE0-3). Detailed load flow plots are contained 

in Appendices Hand I of Exhibit ~ (JE0-1). 

.OW waa tbe poaaible need to add CT oapaoity at 

tbe DeBary GeneratiDq aite inclu4e4 in your 

analyaia? 

As Mr. Foley has testified, FPC needs the ability 

to add combustion turbine (CT) capacity to its 

system on short notice. The study therefore 

included an analysis of the impact of additional 
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generation at DeBary, beyond the 340 HW being 

added at the site in 1992. The analysis showed 

that by 1992 the DeBary site will be transmission­

limited, such that the addition of as little as 

150 MW ot new generation at the site without 

~an .. laaion i~rovements would cause the system 

to violate single contingency criteria. By adding 

a third circuit from the site to the load area in 

the south, the Project enables up to 450 MW of 

generation to be added at the DeBary site without 

adverse transmission system consequences. 

Mr. Foley discusses the various planning 

contingencies that could result in the need to 

locate additional combustion turbines at the 

DeBary site on short notice. 

Does tbe Project provide aay other benefits? 

Yea, in addition to (1) solving the 1995 single 

contingency, (2) addressing the double circuit 

outage problem, (3) preventing the 1997 single 

contingency violation, and (4) supporting 450 MW 

ot additional CT capacity at the DeBary site, the 

Project provides two other benefits. First, the 

Project provides the ability to reliably transfer 

11 
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1 aore power from the electrical sources at DeBary 

2 and FPL's Sanford Plant into the Greater Orlando 

3 Area. Second, the Project makes the Winter 

4 Springs Substation a strong source that will 

5 support a 230 kV extension to the south and east 

6 to provide a new source for the underlying 69 kV 

7 network in the future. 

8 

9 Alteraatiyea 

10 Q. Did FPC ezaaiae any alternative• to the Project? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Yea. 

•leaae au.aari•• thoae alternative•. 

FPC identified transmission improvements that, 

singly or in combination, could meet all of the 

needs that are addressed by the Project. The 

alternatives fell into three groups: 

Group A: Alternatives that address the DeBary­

North Longwood corridor violations, the Stanton­

Rio Pinar violation, and support additional 

generation at the DeBary site. 

Group B: Alternatives that address the DeBary­

North Longwood Corridor violations and support 

additional capacity at DeBary. 
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Grgup C: Alternatives that correct the Stanton­

Rio Pinar violation. 

Each alternative is shown on the table attached as 

Bxhibit ~ (JE0-4). The alternatives in Group 8 

and Group C do not address all of the needs the 

line is designed to address. The only options 

that address all of the needs are the Project and 

the DeBary-Winter Park East line (Group A), and 

coabinationa of one project from Group 8 and one 

project from Group c. 

•ow 4i4 you ooaolu4e that the Project is the beat 

of the available alternatives? 

Each alternative (or combination of alternatives) 

that aeets all of the needs was evaluated based on 

coat and technical factors. The only single-line 

alternative that provided the same benefits is the 

DeBary-Winter Park East line. This alternative is 

essentially a longer and more expensive version of 

the Project. This alternative was rejected 

because the added cost did not provide any 

~dditional benefits. Each of the two-line 

alternatives was more expensive than the Project, 

and none of them were as desirable from a 

technical viewpoint. The Project was therefore 

13 
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4 Jro1ept Dltaill 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Wbat i1 tbe rPC'I ttaetable for lioentinq, 4esiqn 

aa4 ooaatruotioD of the Project? 

FPC is presently evaluating corridors in 

anticipation of submitting an application under 

the Transmission Line Siting Act (TLSA) by 

Deceaber, 1991. The final action by the Siting 

Board is expected by october, 1992. Detailed 

detiqn of the Project will begin as soon as a 

final corridor is approved. Construction is 

expected to begin in June, 1994 and to be 

coapleted by December, 1995. A licensing and 

construction timetable for the Project is 

contained in Appendix B of Exhibit ~ (JE0-1). 

Wbat it tbe ourreDt 1tatus of oorri4or 111ection 

for tbe Project? 

FPC's permitting team, in conjunction with its 

consultants, has examined a large number of 

possible corridors using a series of 

environmental, land use, cost, reliability, and 

other criteria. Although no final decision on the 
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preferred corridor or corridors has been made, the 

aoat promising candidate corridors make extensive 

use of existing transmission line rights-of-way. 

•leaae provide rPC'a capital coat eatiaate for the 

~ojeot aa4 4eaoribe the aaauaptiona on which the 

eatt.ate ia baaed. 

The Project is estimated to cost approximately 

$14 aillion in 1995 dollars, although the cost 

could ranqe froa approximately $£imillion to 

approxiaately $16 million depending on the final 

corridor approved under the TLSA. This estimate 

incorporates all costs, including transmission 

desiqn and construction, right-of-way acquisition, 

terainations at DeBary Substation and the Winter 

Springs Substation, and the cost to convert the 

Lake Eaaa Substation from a 115/13 kV substation 

to a 230/13 kV substation. This conversion cost 

is included because several of the possible siting 

options use an existing 115 kV transmission line 

riqht-of-way for a portion of the Project. If one 

of these corridors is selected, the existing line 

would be removed and the Lake Emma Substation 

would need to be converted. Many of the options 

that do not include routing through the Lake Emma 
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Substation have other offsetting costs, and the 

estimated coats for the top ten routes are all 
I~ 

within the $~ to $16 million range. This 

coapares with an estimated cost of $17 million to 

$31 million for the alternatives discussed above 

and shown on Exhibit~ (JE0-4). 

Wbat aaauraace oan •PC qive that the actual coat 

of the Project will aot ezcee4 the current 

eattaate? 

FPC cannot give any absolute assurance as to the 

final installed cost of the line. While the 

estimate is the most accurate one possible at this 

time, the final route has not been selected and a 

nuaber of factors beyond FPC's control can affect 

the final cost of the line. These include: the 

determination of the final length and routing of 

the line in further proceedings under the TL~A; 

any costs required to comply with unexpected 

conditions that may be imposed through the TLSA 

process; and unexpected changes in materials or 

labor costs. 

16 
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1 COUMMAM• of Delp or Dgial 

2 Q. Wbat would be the ooaaeqaeacea to FPC AD4 ita 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A. 

aaata.era if the appro~l of the Project ••• 

delayed? 

The consequences would depend in part on the 

lenqth of the delay . Any delay of more than a few 

.ontha in obtaining final approval by the Siting 

Board could delay the in-service date of the 

Project on a month-for-month basis. Any in­

service delay would expose FPC's customers to the 

poaaibility of losing service in the event of the 

single contingency outage of the Sanford-North 

Lonqwood line beginning in winter 1995. In 

addition, such a delay would extend the period 

durinq which the double circuit outage could cause 

aevere outages in the Greater Orlando Area, and 

would delay the date that CTs could be added at 

the DeBary site without violatinq single 

continqency criteria. 

An in-service delay of two years or more would 

expose FPC's customers to the possibility of 

losinq service in the event of the outage of the 

Stanton-Rio Pinar 230 kV line, in addition to all 

of the consequences of a shorter delay. 

17 
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Wbat would be the tapact if certification of the 

line was denied? 

Because FPC will violate single contingency 

criteria by 1995 without the Project, doing 

nothing is not an alternative. If certification 

was denied, FPC would be required to address its 

cuatoaera• needs with a longer, more costly, less 

desirable alternative or combination of 

alternatives. 

11 "'"'" 
12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

•lease au.aarise your teatiaony. 

The DeBary-Winter Springs transmission line is 

needed tor a variety of reasons. By December 

1995, a single transmission line outage would 

cause a transaission line to overload. In 

addition, by December 1997, a different single 

transaission line outage would result in a second 

transaiasion line overload . The Project corrects 

both of these problems, as well as minimizing the 

effect of a double-circuit outage that would cause 

widespread outages. In addition, the Project will 

allow FPC a great deal of flexibility in how it 

meets the energy needs of its customers. This 

line provides that flexibility in two ways . The 
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first way is by eliminating the transmission 

limitation at the DeBary Generating Plant. This 

provides FPC with the option of installation of 

generation at DeBary on short notice if that is 

the most prudent, cost-effective thing to do. 

This Project also provides flexibility by 

providing a starting point for an extension of the 

230 kV transmission system to the south and east 

that will provide needed support for the existing 

and future 69 kV system. 

Doe• tbat conclude your te•tiaony? 

Yes. 

19 
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BY MS . S'l'UART : 

2 Q Mr. Odom, would you please summarize your 

3 testimony for us? 

4 A Yes, I will. The purpose of my testimony is to 

5 demonstrate that Florida Power Corporation has a need for a 

6 230 kV transmission line starting at our DeBary substation 

7 located at our DeBary Plant and continuing south to Winter 

8 Springs substation before the winter of 1995. As Mr. Foley 

9 has already testified this line addresses transmission 

10 reliability needs of the Greater Orlando Area. 

11 I'll summarize each one of the items listed on the 

12 bullet chart, and show why each is a concern and how the 

13 project addresses each. If I may get up and use the 

14 ezhibits. 

15 Okay. Exhibit 3 is a map of the Greater Orlando 

16 Area. It shows the 230 kV lines that are run in the area 

17 and also it shows the power plants which are the squate 

18 boxes. The power for this area is supplied by long 

19 transmission lines and the local generation. In 1995 the 

20 area of concern is the interconnection between the 

21 generation in the north and the load center in the south. 

~ There are two generation plants in the north, the DeBary 

23 Plant, which is FPC, and the Florida Power and Light Sanford 

24 Plant. 

25 The first problem that we have is that in 1995 the 
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loaa of the Sanford-North Longwood line will cause the 

2 Sanford-Sylvan-Morth Longwood line to exceed its emergency 

3 rating. The reason this happens is that there is a limited 

4 number of tranaudssion lines between the generation in the 

5 north and the load center in the south, and when you lose 

6 this one line the power has to redistribute over the others. 

7 And with that redistribution of power the Sanford-Sylvan-

8 Borth Longwood line overloads. 

9 Well, with the new line shown here in orange from 

10 DeBary to Minter Springs, you have another path from the 

11 generation to the load center which will, the power will be 

12 redistributed over that line as well and remove the 

13 overloading of the Sanford-Sylvan-North Longwood line. 

14 In 1997 there is another single contingency 

15 violation, which is another outage of a different line that 

16 will cause another line to overload, and that is down in the 

17 south. The Korth Longwood, the Winter Springs line, if that 

18 line goes out of service, the Stanton-Rio Pinar line will 

19 load up to its emergency rating. This overload is caused by 

~ -- the power is normally served from the south and from the 

21 north to serve the load in this area. That with the loss of 

~ the line to the north all of the power must be served from 

23 the south and the line overloads. With the new line in to 

24 Minter Springs this outage is no longer a consequence 

25 because you have a line from the north as well as a line 
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from the south. 

2 The next area of concern is the double circuit 

3 section bet"een Sanford and North Longwood and Sanford-

4 Altamonte. These two lines that are right side by side are 

5 a double circuit line for approximately 12 miles . As Mr . 

6 Poley baa already said that for the loss of this double 

7 circuit which could happen with a single event, the Sanford­

a Sylvan-Borth Longwood line will load to a hundred and 69 

9 percent of ita emergency rating. 

10 While the proposed project, DeBary to Winter 

11 Springs line, does not totally alleviate that overload it 

12 will reduce it down to a level where the dispatchers could 

13 intervene and prevent a cascading failure. There would be a 

14 loss of load, but it would not be a cascading transmission 

15 line failure because other lines would overload. 

16 COMMISSIONER EASLEY : Explain cascading failure . 

17 WITKESS ODQM: Okay . If you lost this line, this 

18 line loads up to a hundred and 69 percent, well, that 

19 would cause that line to go out of service because it 

~ exceed ita emergency rating, and then another line to 

21 Indian River would overload and then another line would 

~ overload and another line. 

23 

24 

A 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY : Thank you. 

WITNESS ODOM: Mot a good situation . 

(Continuing) The next area is the power transfer 
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capability into the Greater Orlando Area. As I mentioned 

2 before, there is generation in the north and the load in the 

3 south. So by having another line going from the generation 

4 to the load center you have created another path for the 

5 power to flow in to the load center, and therefore you can 

6 bring more power in to the Greater Orlando Area. 

7 And the next one is to provide for a future 

8 extension of the 230 kV section in to the eastern section of 

9 our eaatern diviaion. It's better to demonstrate it on this 

10 .. p, if you can see it. The area that I'm talking about is 

11 baaically southeast of Winter Springs and north of the 

12 Orlando Utilities Commission service territory. So it's 

13 thia area in here (indicating). 

14 Presently that area is served by long 69 kV lines 

15 that go out of Winter Park East and Rio Pinar, and go out in 

16 to that area. And as the load out there continues to grow, 

17 there ia going to be the need to get more power into that 

18 area than the existing transmission facilities can handle. 

19 So eventually we see a need for a 230 kV line out in to that 

~ area. And by providing another line into Winter Springs 

21 that will make that an appropriate starting point for that 

~ line to go out and to serve that load in the area. 

~ The last item, as Mr. Foley has already testified, 

24 ia the flexibility to site additional combustion turbines in 

25 the, at the DeBary site. There are many alternatives that 
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1 we evaluated. Some of them address all of the needs . Some 

2 addreaa only part. But based on this analysis the DeBary to 

3 Winter Springs line is the one that best meets all of these 

4 needs. 

5 ~hia concludes my summary . 

6 Ns. · S~ART: ~hank you. The witness is available 

7 for cross. 

8 

9 

COMNISSIOBER NILSOB: Staff. 

CROSS EXAMIBATIOM 

10 BY NR. ELIAS: 

11 Q Nr. Odom, could you give a short explanation of 

12 what you mean by single contingency criteria? 

a single contingency criteria is one where 

outage would cause another to over -- to 

15 reach or exceed ita emergency rating. 

16 Q A double contingency? 

17 A A double contingency is when there's two circuits 

18 affec-ted. 

19 Q Does this also include generating plants? 

~ A Our, our single contingency criteria also states 

21 that well, let me back up a minute. Our normal planning 

~ criteria states that any reasonable dispatch must be 

~ obtained under normal conditions without overloading any 

24 linea above their normal rating. So what that means is that 

25 aince any plant can go down either for maintenance or forced 
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outage that under normal circumstances you have to be able 

2 to withatand the loss of any one plant under normal 

3 conditions without violating the normal rating of the line. 

4 Then the single contingency is for any reasonable 

5 diapatch you have to be able to not exceed the emergency 

6 rating. 

1 Q ~bia next aeries of questions refers to Exhibit 4, 

8 load flows before and after the project. 

9 Would you explain the distinction between normal 

10 ratinga, noadnal voltage and emergency ratings as they are 

11 uaed on thia chart? 

12 A I'm sorry which chart was that? 

13 Q I believe it's Table 1 on Exhibit 4. 

1<4 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

MS. S!UART: JE0-3, Mr. Elias, is that correct? 

MR. ELIAS: Yes . 

JB0-3, which is Exhibit 2? 

Pour. 

Pour. Wait --

It's the table on Page 16 . 

COMMISSIOKER NILSOK: That has been marked as 

21 Exhibit Bo. 4, and it is your JE0-3. 

~ WITKESS ODOM: Okay, let me -- okay. Yes, thank 

~ you. Sorry. 

24 BY IUt. ELIAS: 

~5 Q The distinction between normal ratings, nominal 
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1 voltage and emergency ratings as they are used on this 

2 chart. 

3 A Well, the normal rating is the rating that the 

4 line, the flow in the line has to be less than its normal 

5 rating under all reasonable dispatch, under all conditions . 

6 ~he emergency rating, you can go up to that rating for any 

7 aingle contingency criteria -- or any single outage. 

8 0 What ia meant by nondnal voltage -- I'm sorry. 

9 What are FPC's acceptable ranges for percentage of 

10 -rgencJ rating and percentage of normal rating? 

11 A I'm not sure I quite understand the question. Let 

12 .. trJ to answer it. Is that under normal conditions you 

13 can, JOU cannot exceed ita normal rating, reach or exceed 

14 ita normal rating, ao a hundred percent, and a hundred 

15 percent of the emergency rating is a violation also. 

16 0 Exhibit 4 shows the percent of emergency and 

17 nor.al ratings of certain lines with and without this 

18 project. Could you please step through the calculation of 

19 these percentages and refer to where these numbers are 

~ located on the load flow diagrams attached to the petition? 

21 A So you would like for me to go through an example? 

22 0 Yes. 

23 A Okay. The easiest thing to do is to go to Exhibit 

24 2, which is the blue study book, and let's look at the 

25 first, the first load flow map, which is the 11 by 17 map. 
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It'• marked Appendix H, Page I, or Page 1, excuse me. 

2 Does everybody have that page? 

3 COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Appendix I, Page l, right? 

4 

5 

6 it . 

7 

WITNESS ODOM : Appendix H, Page 1 . 

COMMISSIONER EASLEY: Be there in a minute . Got 

WITlESS ODOM: The first big sheet. 

8 A Okay, this is a power flow map that shows the 

9 outage of the Banford-Korth Longwood line . If you look 

10 about three inches down from the top you will see a long 

11 line acroaa there that has SK Plant with the number 469 

12 right below it, that is the designation for the Sanford 

13 Plant. 

14 And you will see a short dashed line that runs 

•5 atraight down to another bus that is called N- Longwood that 

16 ia our Korth Longwood . The fact that that line has short 

1i daabes means that it's been outaged in this case, and the 

18 fact that it doesn't have any numbers, that is the way you 

19 can tell it from the other dashed line. 

~ Each line has a normal and an emergency rating. 

21 And the ... rgency rating of the Sanford Plant to Sylvan 

22 line , which goes diagonally across the page from bus 469 

23 down to bus 705, if you look at the top, you can see two 

24 numbers right at the Sanford Plant, one 654 and one 74.6. 

25 Oka7. The 654 is the megawatts. 74.6 is the megavars . 
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And in order to convert that to MVA, which is what 

are in, they aren't additive, so you have 

And that simply is the 

of the megavars, 

5 and you take the ·~uare .root of tbat. 

6 COMMISSIOKER EASLEY: That's easy for JOU to aaJ. 

7 A !he main thing to remember is that they are not 

8 just additive. And so once you get the MVA flow on the 

9 line, JOU divide it by the emergency rating of the line, 

10 which in this case is 603 MVA, and you multiply it by a 

11 hundred and fOU come up with the hundred and nine percent 

12 shown on the Ezhibi t 4. 

13 Q ~hat description that you just gave us, is that 

14 applicable to all the other load flows that are attached to 

1o the petition? 

16 A Yea, it is. 

17 Q So the same criterion and the same formula would 

18 be applicable to 

19 A The same formula would be applicable that each 

~ line m&J have a different rating. 

21 Q Which would be duly noted on the load flow chart, 

22 correct? 

23 A Ko, the load flow charts are already busy enough. 

24 The7 don't have line ratings on them. The dashed lines 

25 indicate that it's over its rating, but the numbers aren't 
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there. 

2 Q Why were low volta9es not identified as a problem 

3 under anJ aingle contin9ency? 

4 A Doin9 the analysis of our study we saw no low 

s voltages occur in the area for any of the sin9le outages 

6 that we ran. 

7 Q What is the significance of desi9ning flow to be 

8 below normal rating and for bavin9 volta9es never drop below 

9 95 percent of their nominal voltage for single contin9ency 

10 conditions under the model, and bow are these compatible? 

11 A Let me, I hope I know exactly what your question 

i l "'· aui·o•lll what you just read was, is the plannin9 
F 

13 criteria that we have at PPC that also is used by FCG, and 

:4 in order to ensure that we've got reliable service to our 

15 cuata.ers we plan to meet these criteria. 

16 Q If low volta9es will not be the cause of the 

17 criteria violations, what specifically will cause them? 

18 Demand, generation, dispatch, or both or all three? 

19 A ~he criteria violations are the overloaded lines, 

~ which are a function of generation and demand. 

21 Q Referrin9 to what has been marked as Exhibit No. 

22 12, PPC's Responses to Staff's Informal Data Requests, Nos . 

23 9 and 10. 

24 COMMISSIONER WILSON: All ri9ht, do you want to 

~ identify these? 
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1 MR. ELIAS: Yeah. 

2 COKNISSIONER WILSON: Or have they been? 

3 MS. STUART: They have not. I need to ask the 

4 vitneaa. Do you have a copy of those? 

5 WITRESS ODOM: Yes, I do. 

6 MR. BLIAS: Exhibit Bo. 10 is Florida 

7 Power Corporation's June 25th, 1991 Response to Staff's 

8 lnfor.al Data Requests, Nos. 1 through 8. 

9 CONNISSION&R WILSON: All right. 

10 MR. ELIAS: Exhibit Ko. 11 is FPC's 6/26/91 

11 a .. ponae to Staff's Informal Production of Documents 

12 Request, Stanton-Winter Springs Flow Diagrams. 

13 CONNISSIONER WILSON: All right. 

14 MR. ELIAS: Exhibit Ko. 12 is FPC's July 5th, 1991 

15 Reaponae to Staff's Informal Data Request No. 9 and 10. 

16 &nd. Exhibit Ko. 13 is Orlando Utility Commission's 

17 Electric Boundary and Transmission Map. 

18 (Bxhibit Kos. 10, 11, 12 and 13 marked for 

19 identification) 

20 COMMISSIONER EASLEY: And which one are you 

21 looking at? 

~ HR. ELIAS: We are looking at No. 12, which is the 

~ Reaponaes to Informal Data Requests No. 9 and 10. 

24 BY MR. BLIU: 

25 Q Por the area served by North Longwood, Winter 
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Springs and Winter Park East, approximately how many load 

2 management customers are currently signed up? 

3 A The numbers that are provided on Request Mo. 9 are 

4 for PPC'a customers in all of the Greater Orlando Area. 

5 Q And my question to you is can you break that down 

6 any further to hone in on what is going to be served by this 

7 project? 

8 A Ko, we keep, on history we keep that by our 

9 division. This area that we defined here is our eastern 

10 and ~d-Plorida division, but we can't break it down to the 

11 specific line because we don't keep our records that way. 

12 COMMISSIONER WILSON: Do your dispatchers know 

13 where, do your dispatchers know where your load 

14 manag ... nt customers are? Can they use load management 

15 customers to manage transmission line problems or 

16 concerns? Or is that usable for that purpose? 

17 WITNESS ODOM: I don't believe that that is usable 

18 for that purpose. That is primarily for the generation 

19 aide of it. 

~ BY MR. ELIAS: 

21 Q Would you summarize why Florida Power Corporation 

~ feels additional conservation and/or load management will 

23 not mitigate or delay the need for this project? 

24 A Yes, I will. The, I ran some sensitivity studies 

25 that showed that even if we added 300 megawatts more of 
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conaervation and load management just in this area, which is 

2 very unlikely to happen, just because of the pure size of 

3 the programa that would be necessary to do that, that the 

4 results of my study did not change even with an additional 

5 300 megawatts of load management conservation in this area. 

6 Q On Page 7 of your direct testimony, Lines 14 

1 through 17, it states that the study included an examination 

a of how the generation dispatch affected power flows on the 

9 traa~ssion syst .. in the study area. 

10 A Can you repeat the page number and line? 

11 Q Page 7, Linea 14 through 17. 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q What, specifically what generation dispatch 

14 variations were examined? 

15 A We studied how the generation out of the DeBary 

16 Plant, Sanford Plant and the OOC Stanton Plant, how it 

11 affected the flows in this area. 

18 Q Which criteria violations were affected by 

19 generation dispatch and how? 

~ A Different criteria violations occurred with 

21 different generation dispatch. Basically you are looking at 

~ two separate problems that this line is going to address . 

~ One is in the north with the, from the power from DeBary and 

24 Sanford Plant comdng in to the south . That is the first 

25 contingency, Item Ko. 1 on the bullet chart. With matched 
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1 generation at DeBary and Sanford that single contingencr 

2 violation occurred. 

3 On the south end with the ouc Stanton Plant, the 

4 other aingle contingency, Item fto. 2, was affected. And 

5 vbat bappeoa there is that with the Stanton Plant running at 

6 ita maaiaum output, the line running from Stanton up to Rio 

7 Pinar overloaded for the loss of the Rorth Longwood-Winter 

8 •pringa 1 ine. 

Q 

10 clocu.ent • 

11 

12 

A 

Q 

OkaJ. ~urning to Exhibit 2, which is the study 

Yea. 

At the bottom of Page 11, continuing to the top of 

13 Page 12, PPC lists a major assumption impacting the analysis 

14 concerning a half a mile reconfiguration loop . 

15 

16 

A 

Q 

Yea. 

Where on the map in Exhibit 3 is this loop? Would 

17 JOU point out? 

18 A Okay, I need to get up to do that. 

19 Q Yea. 

20 A !'hat area is right here at the Sanford Plant. 

21 Q What is the purpose of reconfiguring the 

22 tranamiaaion system to loop into the FPL Sanford Plant? 

23 A !'he purpose of that is that presently the DeBary 

~ to Sanford line, and there are two lines going in to the 

~ Sanford Plant on this map from DeBary. They currently 
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1 don't, in today'a system don't go in to Sanford Plant . They 

2 go fraa DeBary to Korth Longwood. So this is one line, from 

3 DeBary to Sanford ~o Korth Longwood would be a straight line 

4 without going into Sanford, and then the DeBary to Altamonte 

5 line does not go into Sanford. 

6 We are presently negotiating with Florida Power 

7 and Light to loop those lines into Sanford Plant to 

8 alleviate a problem that exists today that we are, that is 

9 the .... line that ia overloading. And so this is a 

10 r~al aolution, if you will, that the effect of that is 

11 that it tiea our two ayat.ma more strongly together, so that 

12 they act more as one system, and so that was the impact of 

13 that. 

14 COMNISSIOKER WILSOK: I'm not sure I understand 

15 what the problem is today that you are curing by doing 

16 that? 

17 MITKESS ODOM: Okay. You have to visualize this 

18 line going from DeBary to Morth Longwood as one line. 

19 DeBary to Altamonte is another line . And the only line 

~ that 90ea in to Sanford Plant is the one that goes out 

21 to Sylvan. Okay. What happens is if you lose the 

~ DeBary-Korth Longwood line, the same thing that happens 

~ on Bullet Mo. 1 happens, the Sanford-Sylvan-North 

24 Longwood line overloads because the power now, instead 

25 of going straight to North Longwood, you have the 
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DeBarJ-Altamonte, and then it goes from DeBary to 

2 Sanford, and then overloads this line. 

3 So It's the same problem. We are just using that 

4 aa the first step to the solution with this line being 

5 the neat atep in the progression. 

6 BY ICJl. ELIAS: 

7 Q Where would the Lake Emma substation be located on 

8 Bzhibit 3 if it were a 230 kV substation? 

9 A ~he Lake Emma substation is approximately right in 

10 bare, and it'a a 230 -- it's a 115 to 13 kV substation, and 

11 there'a a 115 kV line that runs basically from, well, it 

12 runa from our ~urner Plant down to North Longwood. And one 

13 of the .aDJ aiting options that we are currently 

14 iDveatigating includes uaing that 115 right-of-way for the 

15 2~0 kV line. ADd there's two options that would be 

16 available if that line, if that route was chosen. One would 

17 be to r..ove that 115 kV line and convert the Lake Emma 

18 aubatation to, to a 230 kV operation. The other would be to 

19 double circuit with the 115 and the 230 on the same 

~ atructure and keep the Lake Emma substation at 115. 

21 Q Referring to Appendix A of Exhibit 2 of the study 

22 document. 

~ A Appendix A. 

24 Q Bow much will the Lake Emma conversion cost and 

25 approzimately what percentage is this of the total project 
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coat? 

2 A Well, aa stated on Appendix A, the cost is $2.3 

3 adllion for the conversion, and I can calculate what the 

4 percentage of that is. That ia approximately 16 percent. 

5 Q Okay. Section 403.522 subsection 15 Florida 

6 Statutes refers, states, "if the proposed location of the 

7 corridor ia affected by the applicant's proposed 

e inte~ate aubatation, then the general location of the 

9 proposed inte~ediate substation and not the permitting of 

10 each such substation shall be considered in the 

11 certification proceedings." 

12 Doe• PPC interpret this statute to mean just new 

13 construction or significant capital improvements and 

14 UP9radea aa well? 

15 HS. S~&RT: Excuse me, Mr. Elias, could I have 

16 that citation again? 

17 MR. ELIAS: 403.522 sub 15. 

18 MS. STUART: And you are referring to the language 

19 that aaJa, "if the proposed location of the corridor is 

20 affected bJ the intermediate substation"? 

21 NR. ELIAS: That is correct . 

22 MS. STUART: I that substation has been renumbered 

~ as subsection 21 and that language eliminated by the 

24 Legislature. 

25 COMMISSIONER WILSON: That would certainly put 
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thing• in a different light, wouldn't it? Was that 

2 part of the revision in the last Session to that 

3 atatute? 

4 MS. S~ART: In 1990. 

5 COMMISSIORER WILSON: In 1990. 

6 MS. S~ART: Oh-huh. I have it here if you would 

7 like. 

8 BY D. BLIU: 

9 Q Would the proposed project share common structures 

10 for anJ part of ita length? 

11 A MaJbe ia the beat answer. We are in the siting 

12 proceaa or the corridor aelection process right now, and 

13 part of it .. , be on eziating structures, but we are not in 

14 a poaition right nov to say definitively that it will be . 

15 Q Would a Sanford-Winter Springs circuit provide the 

16 .... , 1 .. a or more reliability for the potential double 

17 circuit outage than the DeBary-Winter Springs line? 

18 A A Sanford to Winter Springs line, is that what you 

19 are aakiag? 

20 Q Yea. 

21 Okay, a Sanford-Winter Springs would provide a 

~ 1eaa reliable system because you would not have the same 

23 nwaber of ties from the DeBary substation down in to the 

24 load center aa you do now. 

25 Q Was the possibility of a cascading failure known 
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to be a risk when FPC added the second circuit? 

2 A I'm not sure when that, when those two circuits 

3 were put together, but one of the factors of any 

4 tranaaission line siting ia as the load continues to grow 

5 the loading ia going to grow heavier and heavier. And so I 

6 would auapect that the loss of that double circuit structure 

7 at the ti .. it vaa put in waa not, or it wasn't as severe as 

8 it ia todaJ. 

9 Q Are there anJ other alternatives which would 

10 oa.pletelf eli~nate any customer impact as a result of a 

11 double outage? 

12 A ~bere are other things that could be done in 

13 addition to thia, thia line, that would eliminate any 

14 poaaibi 1 i tJ of an outage. 

15 Q In 1 ieu of this 1 ine? 

16 

17 

A 

Q 

Bo, in addition to this line. 

Are there any in lieu of this line? 

18 A Bo, there are not. 

19 Q Are there anf alternatives that could partially 

~ solve the problem? 

21 A Well, we looked at various alternatives that could 

~ partiallJ solve that problem, and all the problems, but none 

~ of them were as good to meet all of the needs of this 

24 project. 

25 Q Since both of these circuits carry bulk power from 
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1 PPL'a Sanford Plant, what is FPL's stake in seeing that the 

2 line outages and overloading do not occur? 

3 & The cuatomera that are affected by this line 

4 outage would be Florida Power Corporation's customers, that 

5 theae, you know, if that double circuit outage was to 

6 happen, it would be Florida Power Corporation's customers 

1 that would be affected. 

8 Q Referring to Pages 11 and 12 of your direct 

9 teatiaonr, from Line 24 on Page 11 to Line 7 on Page 12. 

10 & Yea. 

11 Q It states that the first -- okay , what portion of 

12 the power transferred from generation in the north to load 

13 in the south ia anticipated to be from FPL's Sanford Plant? 

14 & Well, you really can't say what portion of the 

15 eeaeration goes, because the -- with an interconnected grid 

16 the power will go where, the path of least resistance. And 

17 ao rou can't really say which electrons, if you will, were 

18 generated at the Sanford Plant . 

19 Q Are there any benefits to PPL in terms of having a 

~ Dew aource of ezpansion of the underlying grid eastward 

21 toward their service area? 

22 & I don't know at this time whether there is or not, 

~ that when that ezpanaion or extension is further studied 

24 those, those i teiU vi 11 be addressed. 

25 Q Would you refer to Ezhibit 13, which I believe you 
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1 have a copy of in front of you, that is Orlando Utilities 

2 Ca tsaion electric boundary and transmission map. 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q Is the Stanton-Rio Pinar transmission line on this 

5 eahibit the aaae line referred to in this dockets? 

6 A Yea. 

7 Q Mho ovna this line? 

8 A Florida Power Corporation owns part of the line, 

9 aacl ouc ovna part of the line. 

10 Q otar. In what percentage? 

11 A l'a not sure. 

12 Q Whr joint ownership of this line? In other words, 

13 what PPC needs does it serve, and what ouc needs does it 

14 servel 

Otar, this line is primarily to serve FPC's 

18 cuata.ers, that the line, aa you can see on the map here, 

17 goes through several substations and all of those 

18 substations, Rio Pinar and the ones to the north, are FPC 

19 load and PPC customers. 

20 Q What is the benefit to OUC? 

21 A Of this tie line? 

22 Q Yea. 

23 A It interconnects ~ur systems more strongly 

24 t09ether so that for the, as it does with any 

25 interconnection, when you have two utilities that are in 
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1 cloae proxiadty that it a allows better power transfer 

2 between the uti 1 i ties. 

3 Q Will the Rio Pinar interconnect be important to 

4 OOC for transfer of power sales that will be available from 

5 the Stanton Unit 2 for approximately ten years after its in-

6 aervice date in 1997? 

7 Well, I did a aenaitivity study to see what would 

8 happen to the OUC ayatem if thia Rio Pinar line was not in, 

8 and they would be able to diaburse their energy out of the 

10 -8taDtoa UDit 1 and 2 without this line. 

11 Q Did the project atudy model OUC's interfacing 

12 ..aervice area, or ia it limited only to impact on FPC's 

13 cuata.era? 

14 A ~he apecific study was designed to address how it 

15 iapacted Plorida Power Corporation customers, but one of the 

16 r .. uir.-.nta when you are doing that kind of study is that 

17 you can't adveraely affect your neighbor. 

18 Q Would reinforcing the Stanton-Rio Pinar line, 

19 parta of which are owned by OUC South, pose any potential 

~ reliability problems for OUC in terms of growth or 

21 generation diapatch? 

22 A I don't believe it would, no. 

23 Q Ia the Stanton-Winter Springs extension a natural 

24 extension of the DeBary-Winter Springs project? 

25 A Aa I said before, that we eventually planned to 

GONIA AMD ASSOCIATES 



94 

1 extend the line from Winter Springs. We have not conducted 

2 a study yet to show where the south end of the line would 

3 te~n&te. However, the Stanton Plant is, would definitely 

4 be considered an alternative . 

5 Q At staff's request you performed a sensitivity 

6 analJsis on PPC' s transmission system with the addition of 

7 a 230 kV line from the Stanton Power Plant to the Winter 

a Springs aubatation? 

9 A Yea, I did . 

10 Q Would JOU explain to the Commdssion why this 

11 alternative did not satisfy all of PPC's need criteria? 

12 A Yea, I will . Do you know which line he is talking 

13 about, the line froa Stanton up to our Winter Springs 

14 aubstation? ~hat that line, than even with the line that 

15 long, which is 22 ~lea long, that the single contingency 

to as Bullet Bo. 1, the Sanford-North Longwood 

t during my study it overloaded to a hundred and 

~~4--~ wLtbout anr fia. With the addition of this 22-

it lowered the rating to 105 percent. So it was 

20 still over its emergency rating, even with this new line, 

21 therefore, it is not an alternative to resolve Item 1 on 

22 the chart. 

23 Q 

24 and B. 

25 A 

In Appendix A of Exhibit No. 2, and B, Appendix A 

Yes. 
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Q Are the costa for this proceeding and the site, or 

2 certification proceeding at DBR factored in to the overall 

3 project coats? 

4 A Yea, they are. 

5 Q Aaaumdng that FPC opted not to go under the 

6 7raa.~aaion Line Siting Act, how much longer would it take 

7 to eonatruct a transmission 1 ine? 

8 A I'm not aure I understand the question. 

9 Q Bow auch longer does it take under the 

10 Tranalftiaaion Line Siting Act than otherwise? 

11 A Oh. 

12 MS. STUART: Excuse me, Commdssioner. 

13 Hr. Elias, are you asking if we had the option? 

14 MS. BRADY: Yeah, like if it didn't, sorry, if it 

15 didn't cross the county or whatever. 

16 COMHlSSIOMER EASLEY: Ia that option available? 

17 MS. BRADY: Mo. Well, it is if you consider 

18 different options, which they haven't done. There are 

19 other alternatives that they could have used. It's not 

20 

21 CONNISSIOKER WILSOK: You need to --

~ COMMISSIOMBR EASLEY: Yeah, either identify 

~ yourself or --

24 COMMISSIONER WILSON: Bither identify yourself or 

25 be sworn or get this information through cross 
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1 ezamination. 

2 KS. STUART : Could I have the question rephrased 

3 becauae I'm not aure I understand. 

4 HR. ELIAS: We will withdraw the question. 

5 MS . STUART: Thank you . 

6 MR. ELIAS: Bo further questions, and ask that 

7 Bzhibita 10 through 13 be admitted. 

8 COMHISSIOBER WILSOB: Without objection, Exhibits 

9 10 through 13 are admdtted in to evidence. 

10 (Bzhibit Boa. 10, 11, 12 and 13 received into evidence) 

11 CONKI88IOBER WILSOB : Let me ask you a question. 

bave been sort of thinking about what you said 

load management being unavailable as a 

a diapatcher .anaging transmission lines. 

15 And I'm not aure I underatand why that ia not an 

16 available tool to a dispatcher. 

17 WITBBSS ODOM: The way I understand the load 

18 management system to work, and I'm not an expert in 

19 load manag ... nt bJ any means, but the way I understand 

20 it to work ia that they have zones that they can 

21 activate for generation shortages so that they can 

~ reduce the load on the generation system. But I do not 

23 believe thoae are broken out by geographical areas. 

~ And in order to do that -- right now I believe we have 

25 five sonea . In order to allow you the flexibility to 
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do that, you would have to have a lot more zones, which 

2 would make the system a lot more complicated and less 

3 reliable. 

4 COMMISSIOBER WILSOM: Okay, so what you are saying 

5 is that the load management areas are not broken up in 

6 discrete enough control areas to allow this sort of 

7 thing? 

8 WITBBSS ODOK: Yes. 

9 COMMISSIORER WILSOR: The principle of using load 

10 management, for instance to avoid exceeding emergency 

11 ratinga of line would be available to do, because if 

12 you reduced the load for generation reasons it reduces 

13 the load on the transmission system as well. 

14 WI~BSS ODOH: Yes, theoretically I suppose that 

15 would be possible. The problem would be, is if you had 

16 the tranamiaaion outage and you could have the 

17 generation available, then you would have to interrupt 

18 thoae customers' load management equipment for the 

19 tranamiaaion failure. And I'm not sure if that is 

~ included in the tariff for the load management or not . 

21 COMKISSIOBBR WILSOM: The tariffs aside, just 

~ speaking logically. 

23 WITRESS ODOM: Yes. 

24 COMNISSIOMER WILSOM: You are an engineer. If you 

25 can control load, you can control it for transmission 
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aa well aa generation concerns, couldn't you? 

2 WI~ESS ODOM: Yes, the problem with this 

3 particular line is the magnitude of the amount of load 

4 fOU would have to control. It's so large that it 

5 wouldn't be practical to do that, even if it was 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

~ 

21 

~ 

23 

24 

25 

available in the zone linea. 

Yeah, that makes sense if 
~ . 
JOU are pulllog load froa total Sfstem because of a 

geDeration concern, it's easier to tate a little bit 

froa a lot of people than take a lot from a few people, 

which is what you would be facing if you were trying to 

control this for a transmission problem in to a certain 

area or sone. 

Wl~ESS ODOM: That is correct. 

COMMISSIOKER WILSOR: I understand. Questions? 

COMMISSIOKER DEASOR: Yes, I have a few questions. 

Hr. Odom, did you refer to -- first, let me ask 

fOU this. What ia going to, what is the estimated cost 

of the project? Originally it was a range of 12 to 16, 

now it's a range of 14 to 16? 

WI~ESS ODOM: Yes, we, as a part of our ongoing 

corridor selection we refined the cost data to where 

now we believe the line will cost between 14 million to 

16 million, and the cluster of routes that FPC is 

considering is in the $14 million range. 
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COKK188IOKER DEASON: So if you are fortunate 

2 enough to have the routes which you would like to have, 

•ou a~e lookiD9 at a 14 ~llion figure roughly, but it 

ADd do these estimates also 

of the Late Emma •ub•tation or 

&Dr of the corridors that used the 

line included the co•t 

~hi• al•o include• the co•t 

rou a~e going to do at Sanford? 

•o. 
Ko, it does not? 

~hat i• a separate issue that we 

future. 

All right. 

~t brings me to another 

COuld rou refer to rour JE0-4, which baa 

5, I believe • 

.Jao-4, ye•. 

Okay . Onder, the first item 

i• the DeBary-North Longwood 
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I UDderatood rour teati.onr earlier, rou 

to tie in to PP'L'S plant in 

ftaat ia correct. 

and 

going 

Okar. Could rou explain to 

fact it alreadr 

~· would be a aecond circuit fraa 

~bia would be a totally new 

OkaJ . And that baa, the 

line would bave an eatimated coat of 12 

ftaat ia correct. 

Do rou know if that ia in 

I'• aorrr. Thoae are in 1995 

alternative• are . 

Okar. ~he Group C, the 

which ia the Morth 

that haa an eatimated 
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Yu. 

~~~~~~0:-tiJlll~-· DDSOII: ADd that ia alao in 1995 

.. nat b correct. 

I would like for a mo.ent to 

ia probably an alternative 

the poaaibility of 

line conatructed in 

in 

Ga!ll;l1111U~J •• with ~he firat it- under Group c. 

-.~it •• were to jut ignore for a __.nt the 

of having additional 

those two linea 

'i.~?~:aitln-~Mit .tu probl- which you are concerned with? 

Well, tbeae two linea are basically 

It'a DeBary to Winter 

directly to Winter 

two costa together you 

you get for the 

.. rine., which ia $14 aillion. '!'hat 

$3 llillion ia the a.ount of work that 

at the lorth Longwood substation 
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lecauae aa you 

to allow you to 

' 
~ Pl ... • cion • t get .. wrong, 

I'a juat aaking you if 

ObYioualy you clicl • . lut you 

in 1995 clollara. 

l••IUIIC~a Dla.-: !'bat line though would not 

So really the 

i~l..-ntation of 

it would be aoae 

particular aegment. 

Y .. , it waa. There were two 

weigbecl in to tbat. One ia that 

at Borth 

of $5 adllion for two 

reliability concerna of 

builcliag a line froa Deaarr in to Borth Longwood . 
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ia alreadf a .. jor hub, if fOU will, of 

add one more line in to 

to make at thia ti ... 

OkaJ . 

capital 

~fl--..,·~-~' to aaac•odate the acenario which I juat 

•rbat. ia correct • 

ODe*: ~ ... 

But it ia good to tie in to 

a aecond line tie in to Winter 

~o give JOU .ore flexibilitJ. 

to have that configuration inatead of 

Yea, it ia. 

Could JOU refer to Page 5 of 

Okay. The last sentence of 

use single 

atructures in the 

I aaau.e that the double 

aenae from a coat atandpoint, 
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lt would belp lliniai&e coata? 

ODQK: actuallr tbe double circuit would 

liDe to coat .ore becauae of the additional 

tzll-~ ~ tlaa~ atructur. .. tbat rou need, and rou would 

aD eaiatiDI circuit in order to double 

Well, I gueaa ., Queation ia 

to do tbat? 

In tbia area, it'a a bighlr 

proceaa we have been 

the 

eaiatiDg linear facilities, follow 

liD .. , or roacla, or railroad right-of-way, 

poaaible that the 

90 in one of these 

vbi-cb.. verr likely could be a 

lo it mar coat more for tbe 

leaat -- may be leas costly 

atandpoint? 

WheD ve are doin9 the corridor 

aalection ve look at land uae and a lot of other 

t•iDI•• and eo. , .. , it .. , coat leas land, but that 

prab&blr won't offaet tbe coat of the additional 
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aut there are other factors that are 

auch-aa the -i .. ac.t on the enviroUiellt and 

1 read this sentence 

fact that one of the 

line will help 

And this double 

underataDd it, ia because there is 

for tvo linea, and that if one of 

out, rou actually would have a 

two linea. 

·~.··~>:i.~toar.- .1._ 9etUD9 ourael vea in to the .... situation 

contingencies or the 

and is 

be concerned with, and have 

Yea, we have considered it. And 

in the corridor 

there's a verr adnimal 

And ao we have to weigh the 

the smaller liability 

because of the line being 

lot of things that can take one circuit 
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li~tDing, aa.etbing bitting one of the 

l&.J.-.Ji:.~•~:' ~· take one of th- out but not the 

take both circuit• out 

to the atructure, and 

that happening ia 

.. ve ~ou ever had a double 

to it, or an outav• of two 

Yu, we have. 

aov often does that happen? 

We had, I believe we've had three 

atartecl keeping aa accurate 

So fro. '77 to toda~ 

caused b~ a ph~aical 

• earth 110ver Jmocked into a big 

'!he 

lt waan' t because of the 

It waa because of aa.ething 

-.~teDed iaaide the aubatatio~ So reall~ --

So ~ou are aa~ing it's 

lt'a fairl~ rare, yea . 
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ADd that's one of the 

with the fact that JOur 

eli~nate the double 

it? It'a a 

ia correct. 

OkaJ, thank JOU. 

Redirect? 

OkaJ. !'he vi tneaa ia ezcuaed. 

hhibita . 

•• would .ove Bzhibits 2 , 3, 4 and 5. 

-·o: otar. 
2, 3, 4 aDd 5 received into evidence) 

l beliewe I previoualJ moved Ezhibita 

10 through 13. 

We bave nothing 

!'bank JOU. 

the proceedings concluded at 11 : 45 a .m.) 
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lotar~ Public in and for the 

~--~~--I..J~lft:fti tbat the foregoing proceedings 

ti .. and place therein 

thereafter reducecl 

Qli8_:~--~ IQ auperYision; and the foregoing pagu 
. 

are a true and correct record oL the 

tbat,... L - not a relative, 

J-~~·• or coaaael of an~ of the parties, nor 

of aucb attorn•~ or counsel, nor 

~~lt•art~t.ed in the foregoing action. 

}.fij [iiiJ•aa ft. _., Ull IDL this, the 12ft dar of 

ftiC:IA L. GOIIIA 
216 Weat College Avenue 
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